
TEL.PACIFIC LIMITED 
A.B.N. 99 073 079 268

Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2014

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Contents

Page

Chairman's Letter 2

CEO and Managing Director's Review 3

Board of Directors 4

Directors' Report 6

Auditor's Independence Declaration 16

Corporate Governance Statement 17

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 22

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 23

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 24

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 26

Directors' Declaration 66

Independent Auditor's Report 67

Shareholder Information 69

Corporate Directory 71

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Chairman's Letter

Dear Shareholder,

Yours sincerely,

Greg McCann
Chairman

On behalf of the Board I am pleased to present the 2014 Annual Report. 

As the Company previously advised the market, we have utilised part of the sale proceeds to pay out liabilities, including
ex- gotalk vendor notes, distribute a special dividend and fund the emerging electricity and gas business. Subject to
assessment of the Company’s cash requirements, the Board intends to return any surplus funds to shareholders.

I would like to thank Management for their hard work this financial year and also to our shareholders for their continued
support. We look forward to reporting to you in the next financial year.

This year saw the Company reach several milestones as it reoriented for future competitiveness. Most notable were the
sale of a core asset, the calling card business, to Aggregato Gulliver Pty Limited; and the emergence of our new
operations relating to retail electricity and gas services.

These changes are reflected in the results of this financial year, which differ markedly from the prior corresponding
period. For the continuing businesses related to mobile services and MRTM operations, revenue was $13.1 million, down
15.7% from the previous year. EBITDA was a loss of ($1.6 million) and the net loss after tax for the continuing business
was a loss of ($8.7 million). Profit after tax from discontinued operations (primarily around the calling card business), was
$14.1 million. This included a gain after tax of $11.5 million from the disposal of that business.

The discontinuation of the calling card business was formalised on 28 April 2014 with a Business Sale and Purchase
Agreement with Aggregato, selling that business for $19 million. The disposal was completed following shareholder
approval on 28 April 2014, shortly after which the Company paid down the majority of outstanding debts and obligations
in connection with that business. The Board considers the sale an excellent outcome for the Company and its
shareholders.

The immediate consequence of the sale at an earnings level is that the Company will be in deficit for the next financial
year, as the ongoing mobile operations maintain their market position, and the new operations begin to mature. This
fundamental change to the principal activities of the Company is being carefully facilitated. The Company will be
implementing various cost control measures to mitigate any financial instability, which will include a review of the
composition of the Board and Executive team.

The provision of electricity and gas services on a retail level by the Company has seen a favourable initial response. This
new business operation commenced in the last quarter of the financial year after the necessary regulatory licences were
granted.
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CEO and Managing Director’s Review

The Company first started selling calling cards in 1999 and since then revenues have steadily grown and several
acquisitions have taken place. Now in 2014, we believe that the calling card market has reached maturity. As such, we
judge that the recent sale of the calling card assets has given shareholders a very good return.

Furthermore, the proceeds have enabled the Company to settle liabilities, such as those inherited from gotalk. This leaves
the Company debt free with a significant cash balance in the bank, which gives greater flexibility to future decisions
concerning operations and investments.

This ample cash reserve can now be reinvested by the Company into the existing operations of Mobile and Mobile Real
Time Monitoring (MRTM), as well as the development of the new Electricity and Gas business.

Mobile

The Company maintains the sale of Hello Mobile and goTalk Mobile products to customers, periodically releasing different
plans based on the state of the pre-paid market. Increased competition coupled with disproportionate market movement has
resulted in a decline in revenue. In addressing this, the Company’s aim is to focus on products with healthy margins and to
remain targeting long term customers.

MRTM

The MRTM has been a steady profit earner for the Company since the agreement with the major carrier was signed off. It
continues to be distributed at wholesale level to some major companies in Australia. Current efforts are underway in
upgrading systems alongside the continued development of customer experience and supplier relations.

Electricity and Gas

Our energy subsidiary CovaU Pty Limited was granted its retail licence for NSW in February 2014. CovaU is now able to
retail both electricity and gas services to residential and business customers. The first four months of operations has seen
CovaU off to a good start in customer acquisition and retention. We expect customer acquisition growth to continue into the
new financial year. Looking ahead, we will continue to focus on growth in customer acquisitions and retention through
expansion into key markets, creating growth opportunities and maximising operational efficiencies.

Risks

Our plans are subject to risks that may impact on our strategy. The key risks identified relate to the new environment
regarding energy operations. These include issues such as retailer energy licences not granted for new States, aggressive
pricing by competitors with no regard to commercial viability and extreme prolonged weather conditions impacting the
wholesale energy prices we pay for energy sold on to our customers. The Company has established plans of action to
address these risks if and when they eventuate.

Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang
CEO and Managing Director
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Board of Directors

Greg McCann   B Bus, FCA, FAICD
Non-Executive Chairman
Appointed 2 April 2007

Greg holds a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) degree and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

He has had 24 years of financial consulting experience with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. During this time he held a variety
of senior leadership positions including the roles of Managing Partner for Papua New Guinea (1987 to 1990), Managing
Partner for Queensland (1990 to 1995), Managing Partner for New South Wales (1995 to 1997), Managing Director of
Deloitte Consulting / ICS Australia (1979 to 2001) and most recently Associate Managing Director of Deloitte Consulting for
Australia and New Zealand (1999 to 2004).

Greg has extensive experience with boards and senior executives at CEO level. He is currently the Managing Director of
Executive Computing Pty Limited, an independent software and consulting services supplier to the Asia Pacific region.
Greg is also Chairman of Moko Social Media Limited, a global provider of mobile social networking services and is on the
board of the law firm, Lander & Rogers.  

Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang   B Eng
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Appointed 28 February 1996

Charles founded the Company in 1996 as an ISP whilst in his third year of studying towards a Bachelor of Mechanical
Engineering degree at Sydney University. Following the deregulation of the telecommunications industry, Charles sought
the opportunity to resell voice products in Australia and in 1999 he decided to transform the Company from a technology
oriented ISP to a marketing and innovation-oriented player in the prepaid calling card sector.

He has successfully steered Tel.Pacific from a start-up company to a public company which was listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange in 2007.

Barry Chan   B Eng
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer 
Appointed 29 September 1999

Barry holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Sydney.

Barry joined the Company in 1999 in a customer service trainee role. He moved on to work in different areas within the
Company, learning every aspect of the business. Appointed Head of Sales and Marketing in June 2004, he has played a
key role in creating a very successful sales distribution channel. Prior to that Barry held positions as Product Manager,
Customer Service Manager, Business Development Manager and Sales Executive. 

Barry has been a significant driver in achieving the impressive growth in the prepaid telecommunication products of the
Company.
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Board of Directors

Jeffrey Ma    B A, FCA, F Fin
Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Appointed 22 November 2004

Jeffrey joined the Company in 2000 with more than 15 years financial services experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Accounting and Financial Management) degree from the University of Sheffield, England and is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is also a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
and a Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of Australia.

He has over 11 years of financial services experience gained with Credit Lyonnais Australia Limited, a merchant bank,
where he held the position of Company Secretary and Head of Finance and Administration in his last five years and was a
Member of the Management Committee. Jeffrey also worked for two years in Westfield Holdings Limited; a listed property
management and development company. He has an extensive professional background, having also worked for Coopers
and Lybrand (now PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Hong Kong and with a chartered accounting firm in London. 

Stephe Wilks   B Sc, LLM
Non-Executive Director
Appointed 2 April 2007
(Resigned effective from 31 August 2014)

Stephe holds Bachelor of Science and Law degree from Macquarie University and a Master of Law from Sydney
University.

He has over 15 years experience in the telecommunications industry in a variety of senior management roles including
Regional Director Regulatory Affairs with BT Asia Pacific (1995 to 1998), Director Regulatory and Public Affairs at Optus,
and Managing Director of XYZed Pty Limited (an Optus Company) (1998 to 2002), Chief Operating Officer of Nextgen
Networks (2002 to 2003), Chief Operating Officer at Personal Broadband Australia and Consulting Director at NM
Rothschild & Sons (2003 to 2005).

Stephe is an active non-executive director with public and private company experience. He is presently the Chairman of
Bulletproof Group Limited and also a Non-Executive Director of Service Stream Limited, 3Q Holdings Limited and
Bankstown Airport, and Advisory Board Member of the Network Insight Institute.
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Directors' Report

Directors

Greg McCann Chairman (Non-executive) 
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer
Barry Chan Director, Chief Operating Officer
Jeffrey Ma Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
Stephe Wilks Director (Non-executive)(1)

Company Secretary
Nick Geddes  FCA, FCIS

Principal Activities

Operating Result for the Financial Year

Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations

Tel.Pacific Limited sold its pre-paid calling card business during the year.  After the sale of calling card business in March 
2014, the principal activities were pre-paid mobile telephony products and services and the associated operations of the 
Mobile Real Time Monitoring platform in Australia.  

Operating revenue from discontinued operations of $40,339,526 was 38.5% below the previous year of $65,604,509.

Earnings before interest expense, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and impairment (EBITDA) from discontinued
operations were $3,994,010 down by 23.6% from the previous year of $5,230,438. Profit from discontinued operations net
of tax was $14,067,257 up by 396.7% compared to the previous year of $2,831,943.

Tel.Pacific Limited realised a net gain after taxation of $11,460,709 on the disposal of its calling card and related business
in April 2014 after allowing for all transaction expenses. This figure was included in the profit from discontinued operations
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Please refer to Note 29 for details.

Earnings before interest expense, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and impairment (EBITDA) from continuing operations
were a loss of ($1,569,330) down by 223.1% from the previous year of $1,274,668. Net loss from continuing operations
after tax was ($8,667,995), down by 958.3% compared to the previous year of $1,009,871.

Operating revenue from continuing operations of $13,107,200 was 15.7% below the previous year of $15,544,262.

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity consisting of Tel.Pacific Limited (the Company) and the
entities it controlled during the year ended 30 June 2014.

The names of the directors in office during the year and until the date of this report are as below. Other than as noted,
directors were in office for this entire period.

Nick is the principal of Australian Company Secretaries, a company secretarial practice that he formed in 1993. Nick is
past President of Chartered Secretaries Australia and a former Chairman of the NSW Council of that institute. His previous
experience, as a Chartered Accountant and Company Secretary, includes investment banking and development and
venture capital in Europe, Africa, the Middle East and Asia.

Nick is a Chartered Accountant (Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales) and Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (Chartered Secretaries Australia).

The principal activities of the consolidated entity during the financial year were the provision of pre-paid telephony products
and services in Australia, New Zealand and Singapore.  

(1) Tendered resignation on 11 August 2014, effective from 31 August 2014
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Directors' Report

Review of Continuing Operations

$000’s

Year ended              
30 June 2013

Year ended          
30 June 2013 
(Underlying 
Result (1))

Year
ended

30 June 2014 

Year ended          
30 June 2014 
(Underlying 
Result (2))

% Change of 
Underlying 

Result on PCP 

Revenue 15,544       15,544        13,107       13,107          -15.7%
EBITDA 1,275         (542)           (1,569)        (1,569)           -189.7%
NPAT 1,010         (806)           (8,668)        (819)              -1.5%

Dividends

(2) FY2014 NPAT of a loss of ($8.7 million) have been adjusted for non-recurring items relating to provision for impairment of goodwill
of $6.3 million and derecognition of net deferred tax assets $1.5 million.

Revenue of the consolidated entity for the year decreased to $13.1 million, down 15.7% compared to the previous
corresponding period (PCP), due to the decrease in mobile revenue by $2.7 million (down 19.6%) despite the increase in
revenue by $0.2 million (up 13.2%) from the Mobile Real Time Monitoring (MRTM) platform operations. The decrease in
mobile revenue was largely due to fierce competition from the larger carriers in the prepaid mobile space while the increase
in MRTM revenue came from additional rental income this year.

A fully franked special dividend $3,216,364 equivalent to 3 cents per share was declared on 28 April 2014 with a record
date of 5 May 2014 and was paid on 20 May 2014. 

Earnings before interest expense, taxation, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of the consolidated entity for the year
ended 30 June 2014 decreased from $1.3 million to a loss of ($1.6million) (down 223.1% over the PCP).  Net profit after tax 
(NPAT) decreased from $1.0 million to a loss of ($8.7 million) (down 958.3% over the PCP) after the provision for
impairment of goodwill of $6.3 million and the derecognition of net deferred tax assets, amounting to $1.5 million, relating to
unused tax losses and timing differences. The provision for impairment and the derecognition of deferred tax assets is
attributed to the declining mobile business and the forecast net loss resulting from the remaining high overhead expenses
following disposal of the calling card business. The carrying value of the intangibles is no longer supported as the adverse
position is expected  to be maintained until the emerging energy business become profitable.

On 24 March 2014, the Company entered into a Business Sale and Purchase Agreement with Aggregato Gulliver Pty
Limited, to sell certain assets comprising the two stage dialling card operations of the Group. The purchase price for the
sale was $19.0 million. Following the completion of the sale of the calling card business, the remaining balance of vendor
notes of $2.1 million was fully repaid to ex-gotalk shareholders on 30 April 2014. This leaves the Group debt free at balance
date.

(1) FY2013 EBITDA of $1.3 million and NPAT of $1.0 million have been adjusted for non-recurring items totaling $1.8 million resulting
from the settlement of issues associated with the acquisition of the gotalk business in December 2012.

Excluding non-recurring items of the provision for impairment of goodwill of $6.3 million and the derecognition of net
deferred tax assets of $1.5 million, underlying EBITDA and NPAT would have been a loss of ($1.6 million) (down 189.7%
over the PCP) and ($0.8 million) (down 1.5% over the PCP) respectively.

Gross profit of the consolidated entity increased to $3.8 million (up 23.3% over the previous year), attributable to the
improvement in overall gross margin from 19.6% to 28.6%, up 9.0%.  The improvement primarily arose following settlement 
of mobile billing disputes which resulted in the receipt of credit notes, and increased rental income from MRTM platform
operations.

The consolidated entity presents a stronger balance sheet after the disposal of the calling card business as it permitted
repayment of borrowings. The total cash balance and bank deposits (including $2.3 million held as security for bank
facilities) amounted to $13.7million as at 30 June 2014, increased by $8.7 million compared to the last financial year of $5.0
million.
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Directors' Report

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

Events subsequent to the end of the financial year

Likely Developments and Expected Results

Environmental Issues

Directors' Securities Holdings

Director

Number of 
Ordinary 
Shares

Greg McCann 61,420          
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang 4,389,018      
Barry Chan 846,912        
Jeffrey Ma 367,823        
Stephe Wilks 75,000          

Employees

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were:

Effective from 1 April 2014, certain assets of the calling card business formerly owned and operated by the Group, which
represented the larger part of principal activities, was sold to Aggregato Gulliver Pty Limited. See Note 29 for more details.
After the sale, New Zealand and Singapore operations will be winding down, whilst the remaining mobile and MRTM
businesses in Australia will continue alongside the implementation of various cost control measures.

No matter nor circumstance, other than those referred to in the financial statements or notes thereto, has arisen since the
end of the financial year that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the consolidated entity,
the results of operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future financial years.

On 21 February 2014, a retail electricity and gas authorisation licence was granted by the Australian Energy Regulator to
the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, CovaU Pty Limited. Upon receipt of relevant authorisations, CovaU will be able to
retail electricity and gas in each National Energy Law jurisdiction.  

The consolidated entity's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the
Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

On 26 May 2014, the shares of the Company were consolidated through the conversion of every ten shares held by a
shareholder into one share, with any resulting fractions of a share rounded up to the next whole number of shares.

The provision of retail electricity and gas postpaid services to residential and businesses is expected to generate a more
stable income stream in the future after the start-up period. The retail energy services commenced at the end of financial
year.

The consolidated entity employed 37 full time equivalent employees as of 30 June 2014 (2013: 109). The decrease arose
from the transfer of employees to Aggregato following the calling card business disposal.

See the Remuneration Report for further details.
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Directors' Report

Directors' Meetings

Board 
Meetings

Audit and 
Risk 

Committee

Number of Meetings 
Attend / 
Held (1) 

Attend / Held 
(1) 

Greg McCann 11/11 3/3
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang 11/11 n/a
Barry Chan 11/11 n/a
Jeffrey Ma 11/11 n/a
Stephe Wilks 11/11 3/3

Audit and Risk Committee
Stephe Wilks (Chairman)
Greg McCann

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Greg McCann (Chairman)
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang
Stephe Wilks

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers and Auditors

Members acting on the committee of the Board were:

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent permitted by law,
indemnified or agreed to indemnify an auditor of the entity or of any related body corporate against a liability incurred as
such an auditor.

The entity has entered into a directors' & officers' insurance contract on 30 October 2013 for the purpose of insuring against 
any liability that may arise from the directors carrying out their duties and responsibilities in their capacity as officers of the
Company.  The amount of the premium was $38,112.

There were no meetings of the Renumeration and Nomination Committee held during the year. 

As at the date of this report the Company had an Audit and Risk Committee and the functions of the previously established
Remuneration and Nomination Committee were handled by the full Board.

The number of directors' meetings (including meeting of committees of directors) held during the year and the number of
meetings attended by each director were as follows:

(1) Number of meetings held while a director or a member.
n/a denotes director is not and was not a member of the committee during the year.
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Directors' Report

Remuneration Report (Audited)

Details of Directors and Executives

Directors
Greg McCann Chairman (Non-executive) 
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer
Barry Chan Director, Chief Operating Officer
Jeffrey Ma Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
Stephe Wilks Director (Non-executive) 

Executives
Steven Goodarzi Chief Strategy Officer - effective 1 July 2013
Bing Zhou Sales Director
Charles Hsieh Marketing Director
Gang Gu Head of Information System
Huy Nguyen Sales Director and New Zealand Country Manager

 - ceased employment on 1 April 2014
Peter Huang Chief Technology Officer

Remuneration Policy

Employee Share Ownership Plan 
The Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 30
November 2009. This plan replaced the previously approved Employee Option Plan (EOP) instituted on 23 May 2007,
which the board believed was no longer as effective following changes to the taxation of options in recipients hands.

The ESOP aims to motivate, retain and attract quality employees and directors of the Company to create a commonality of
purpose between the employees and directors and the Company. The ESOP is operated by way of the Company issuing
new shares to participants, with an amount equal to the subscription price for those shares being loaned to the participant
by the Company. That loan is secured by the Company taking security over the shares which are subject to a holding lock
period of ten years, and is interest free with recourse only to the shares. The loan is to be repaid over time by the
participant (whether through dividends, specific payments to reduce the loan, or on sale of the underlying shares).

Shares issued under the ESOP will rank from the date of issue equally with the other shares in the Company then on issue.

The names and positions of each director and executive in the Company who received the highest remuneration and
having the greatest authority within the Company, along with the components of their remuneration are provided below.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for determining and
recommending to the Board of Directors remuneration arrangements for the directors, the Managing Director and the
senior management team. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and
amount of the remuneration of directors and senior executives on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment
market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality
board and executive team.

The remuneration report, which has been audited, outlines the key management personnel remuneration arrangements for
the consolidated entity, in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations.
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Directors' Report

Non-executive Director Remuneration

Executive Director and Executives Remuneration

Remuneration of Directors and Executives

2014
 Post 

Employment 
Long Term 

Benefits  Other Total

 Salary and 
Fees 

Cash 
Benefits (8) 

 Non-Cash 
Benefits 

 Super- 
annuation  

 Accrued Leave 
Entitlement 

Termination
Benefits

 $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
Directors
Greg McCann 72,765       -             -             6,730            -                  -               79,495        
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang 260,945     -             44,055       25,000          9,773              -               339,773      
Barry Chan 161,098     -             -             14,903          (4,505)             -               171,496      
Jeffrey Ma 195,000     -             -             25,000          16,392            -               236,392      
Stephe Wilks (1) 68,758       -             -             -                -                  -               68,758        
Executives
Steven Goodarzi 176,225     -             56,413       16,915          11,265            260,818      
Bing Zhou 98,942       -             9,844         8,944            20,233            -               137,963      
Charles Hsieh 105,090     -             10,705       9,552            11,433            -               136,780      
Gang Gu 121,256     -             -             11,562          37,289            -               170,107      
Huy Nguyen (2) 75,000       -             8,187         6,937            2,698              -               92,822        
Peter Huang 130,000     -             4,844         12,025          22,259            -               169,128      

1,465,079  -             134,048     137,568        126,837          -               1,863,532   

Executive directors and executives are eligible to be granted shares under the Employee Share Ownership Plan.

The following tables set out the remuneration received by the directors and executives of the Company during the financial
years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013.

The Constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be
determined from time to time by a general meeting. An amount not exceeding the amount determined is then divided
among the directors as agreed. The latest determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 20 April 2007 when
shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of $350,000 per year payable to non-executive directors for their
services as directors, including their services on a committee of directors.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee determines payments to the non-executive directors and will review their
remuneration annually, based on market practice, duties and accountability. Independent external advice is sought when
required.  

Each non-executive director receives a fee for being a director of the Company. An additional fee may also be paid for each
board committee on which a director sits.

Non-executive directors are eligible to be granted shares under the Employee Share Ownership Plan.

Remuneration granted to the executive directors and other executives has regard to the Company's financial and
operational performance.  

Each executive director and executive receives remuneration commensurate with their position and responsibilities within
the Company.  

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee determines the base salary of the executive directors and will review their
remuneration annually against the external market and individual contribution to the Company. Performance pay based on
overall corporate performance may be made available to the executive team.

 Short Term Benefits 
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Directors' Report

2013
 Post 

Employment 
Long Term 

Benefits  Other Total

 Salary and 
Fees 

Cash 
Benefits (8) 

 Non-Cash 
Benefits 

 Super- 
annuation  

 Accrued Leave 
Entitlement 

Termination 
Benefits

 $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
Directors
Greg McCann 66,150       -             -             5,954            -                  -               72,104        
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang 305,000     -             -             25,000          11,472            -               341,472      
Barry Chan 195,000     -             -             25,000          7,350              -               227,350      
Jeffrey Ma 194,999     -             -             25,000          7,764              -               227,763      
Stephe Wilks (1) 62,364       -             -             -                -                  -               62,364        
Steve Picton (3) (6) 114,258     -             -             2,408            -                  -               116,666      
Ian Solomon (4) (7) 203,463     -             -             2,408            -                  -               205,871      
Executives -             
Bing Zhou 107,710     -             4,708         9,694            -                  -               122,112      
Charles Hsieh 108,808     3,846          4,708         10,193          4,499              -               132,054      
Gang Gu 123,749     24,038        -             13,301          -                  -               161,088      
Gavin Mattig (5) 73,444       8,462          -             8,324            -                  62,088         152,318      
Huy Nguyen 112,199     7,692          4,676         10,790          2,675              -               138,032      
Peter Huang 120,000     -             4,884         10,800          3,727              -               139,411      

1,787,144  44,038        18,976       148,872        37,487            62,088         2,098,605   

2014 2013 2014 2013
Directors
Greg McCann 100% 100% 0% 0%
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang 100% 100% 0% 0%
Barry Chan 100% 100% 0% 0%
Jeffrey Ma 100% 100% 0% 0%
Stephe Wilks 100% 100% 0% 0%
Steve Picton n/a 100% n/a 0%
Ian Solomon n/a 100% n/a 0%
Executives
Steven Goodarzi 100% n/a 0% n/a
Bing Zhou 100% 93% 0% 7%
Charles Hsieh 100% 92% 0% 8%
Gang Gu 100% 100% 0% 0%
Gavin Mattig n/a 100% n/a 0%
Huy Nguyen 100% 91% 0% 9%
Peter Huang 100% 100% 0% 0%

(5)  Ceased employment on 26 February 2013.

(3) Stephen Picton was appointed as director on 30 January 2012 and his salary was paid as an executive. He became a
non-executive director on 30 June 2012 and resigned on 7 February 2013.

(1) Director fees have been paid to High Expectations Pty Limited, for procuring the services of Stephe Wilks to act as a
director. High Expectations Pty Limited is responsible for Stephe Wilks' employment expenses, including statutory
superannuation.

(2)  Ceased employment on 1 April 2014.

 Short Term Benefits 

The proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as follows:

(4) Ian Solomon was appointed as director on 30 January 2012 and his salary was paid as an executive. He became a
non-executive director on 30 June 2012 and resigned on 7 February 2013.

 Fixed Remuneration   Performance  
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Directors' Report

Key Terms of Employment Agreements

Directors and Executives Share Holdings

Total Shares 
Held at 

Beginning of 
Year

Reduction due 
to share 

consolidation
Net Shares 
Disposal

Total 
Shares Held 

at End of 
Year 

Greg McCann 614,200        (552,780)         -                  61,420        
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang 43,890,173    (39,501,155)    -                  4,389,018   
Barry Chan 8,469,116      (7,622,204)      -                  846,912      
Jeffrey Ma 3,678,223      (3,310,400)      -                  367,823      
Stephe Wilks 750,000        (675,000)         -                  75,000        
Bing Zhou 41,280          (37,152)           4,128          
Charles Hsieh 195,500        (175,950)         -                  19,550        
Gang Gu 433,753        (390,377)         -                  43,376        
Huy Nguyen (1) 1,275,289      (1,147,760)      (92,402)        35,127        
Peter Huang 820,258        (738,232)         -                  82,026        

60,167,792    (54,151,010)    (92,402)        5,924,380   

(8)  Cash benefits represented the payout of unused annual leave entitlements.

(7) The amount disclosed included consultancy payments to Ian Solomon of $176,705, which has been reported as a
related party transaction in last year.

(6) The amount disclosed included consultancy payments to Steve Picton of $87,500, which has been reported as a
related party transaction in last year.

(1) Ceased employment on 1 April 2014

Apart from the non-executive directors, all key management personnel are employed under standard company employment
agreements. With the exception of the executive directors (where either party may terminate the agreement by giving a
three months notice to the other), the notice period of standard company employment agreements is one month.

None of these agreements provide for termination conditions or payments. The board considers that the significant equity
holding of executive directors mitigates any risk of not having formal termination clauses.  

Any termination entitlements payable to the key management personnel would be considered in light of the relevant
circumstances and would be determined after consideration of entitlements of common law rights.  

The number of ordinary shares in the company held directly, indirectly or beneficially during the financial year by key
management personnel and their related entities are as follows:

No director or key management personnel were issued options to acquire shares during the year, held any options at the
end of the year or had any options that expired during the year.

During the year, the Company has paid rental totalling $25,525 (2013: $30,940) on normal commercial terms and
conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties, to Jeffrey Ma, in relation to the Brisbane Office.

During the year, the Company has paid rental totalling $22,687 GST inclusive (2013: $27,500) on normal commercial terms
and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties, to First Goldland Pty Limited, in which Barry Chan
owns 10% shareholding, in relation to the Perth Office.

Total shareholdings include shares held by key management personnel and their related entities. Unless related to the
Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) - see Note 25 (a), shares acquired or disposed during the year were on an arm's
length basis at market price.
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Directors' Report

Company Performance, Shareholder Wealth and Director and Executive Remuneration 

(Restated) (Restated)
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Revenue (1) $53.45 m $81.15 m $78.79 m $60.14 m $54.15m

Profit/(loss) after tax $5.40 m $3.84 m  ($7.12 m)  ($1.98 m) $1.05 m
$1.79 m $2.03 m  ($1.12 m)  ($1.98 m) $1.05 m

Share price at year end $0.75 $0.06 $0.04 $0.06 $0.14

Special/interim dividend 3.00 cents 0.00 cents 0.00 cents 0.40 cents 0.40 cents
Final dividend 0.00 cents 0.00 cents 0.00 cents 0.00 cents 0.40 cents

This concludes the Remuneration Report which has been audited.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

Auditor's Independence Declaration 

Non-Audit Services

Corporate Governance

The remuneration policy has been tailored to increase goal congruence between shareholders, directors and executives.
There have been two methods applied in achieving this aim, the first being a performance based bonus based on key
performance indicators, and the second being the issue of equity to the majority of directors and executives to encourage
the alignment of personal and shareholder interests. No bonus have been paid in the current year.

The following table shows gross revenue, profits and dividends over the last five years (including continuing and
discontinued operations).

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the consolidated entity or intervene in any
proceedings to which the consolidated entity is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the consolidated
entity for all or any part of those proceedings.

The consolidated entity was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Underlying profit/(loss) after tax (2)

A copy of the Auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 has been
provided to the directors and is set out on page 16.

The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice from the Audit and Risk Committee, is satisfied that the provision of non-
audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not adversely affect the objectivity
and integrity of the Auditor.

BDO East Coast Partnership received or is due to receive $30,630 for the provision of tax services. 

The directors of the Company support and adhere to the principle of corporate governance, recognising the need for the
highest standard of corporate behaviour and accountability. A review of the Company's corporate governance practices
was undertaken during the year to ensure they remained optimal. Please refer to the corporate governance statement in
this report.

(2) Underlying profit for 2014 is excluding non-recurring items of a net of tax gain on disposal of calling card business $11.5
million, provision for impairment of goodwill $6.3 million and the derecognition of in net deferred tax assets $1.5 million.

(1) Revenue represent amount attributed to continuing (2014: $13.11m, 2013: $15.54m) discontinued operations (2014:
$40.34m, 2013: $65.61m).
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Directors' Report

Rounding of Amounts

     Greg McCann Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang
     Chairman Managing Director                                

Dated this 29 August 2014

On behalf of the Directors

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investment
Commission, relating to "rounding-off". Amounts in this report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order
to the nearest dollar.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors, pursuant to Section 298 (2) (a) of the Corporation Act
2001.
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Level 11, 1 Margaret St  
Sydney NSW 2000 
Australia 

 

Tel: +61 2 9251 4100 
Fax: +61 2 9240 9821 
www.bdo.com.au 

 

BDO East Coast Partnership  ABN 83 236 985 726 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO (Australia) Ltd 
ABN 77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO East Coast Partnership and BDO (Australia) Ltd are members of BDO International 
Ltd, a UK company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme 
approved under Professional Standards Legislation (other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees) in each State or Territory other than 
Tasmania.  
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY PAUL BULL PARTNER TO THE DIRECTORS TEL.PACIFIC LIMITED 

 

As lead auditor of Tel.Pacific Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, I declare that, to the best of 

my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

 

1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 

relation to the audit; and 

2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

This declaration is in respect of Tel.Pacific Limited and the entities it controlled during the period. 

 

 

 

Paul Bull 

Partner 

 

Sydney, 29 August 2014 
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Corporate Governance Statement (unaudited)

Best Practice Recommendations Compliance Comment

1 Lay solid foundations for management
and oversight

1.1 Companies should establish the functions
reserved to the board and those
delegated to senior executives and
disclose those functions.

Complies The company’s Corporate Governance Policy sets out the
specific responsibilities of the Board. The Board
delegates responsibility for the day to day operations and
running of the company to the Chief Executive Officer.

1.2 Companies should disclose the process
for evaluating the performance of senior
executives.

Complies The Board has constituted a sub-committee of members
as the Remuneration and Nomination Committee (each of
the independent Directors, and the Chief Executive
Officer), which formally reviews the performance of senior
executives each year.

1.3 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 1. 

Complies The Corporate Governance Statement is included in the
company’s Annual Report, and the Annual Report
published on the company’s website at
www.telpacific.com.au.

2 Structure the board to add value

2.1 A majority of the board should be
independent directors.

Does not 
comply

Two out of five Board members are independent directors.
The company is of the view that the Board is structured in
such a way as to add value and that the number of
directors is appropriate for the size and complexity of the
business.

2.2 The chairperson should be an
independent director.

Complies Greg McCann is the independent non-executive
Chairman.

2.3 The roles of chairperson and chief
executive officer should not be exercised
by the same individual.

Complies The Chairman is Greg McCann.
The Chief Executive Officer is Chiao-Heng (Charles)
Huang.

2.4 The board should establish a nomination
committee

Does not 
comply

The function of the nomination committee is handled by
the Board. The Company is of the view that it is
appropriate for the size and complexity of the business.

2.5 Companies should disclose the process
for evaluating the performance of the
board, its committees and individual
directors.

Complies The performance of the Board and each of its directors
and committees is formally reviewed by the Chairman
each year, and the Chairman by the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee (in the Chairman’s absence).

This Corporate Governance Statement sets out the Company’s current compliance with the Corporate Governance
Principles and Best Practice Recommendations.   

The Company is committed to implementing standards of corporate governance consistent with the ASX Corporate
Governance Council's second edition Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations. Where the Company's
corporate governance practices do not correlate with the Recommendations, the Company does not currently regard it
appropriate to meet that specific Recommendation, due to the nature and size of the Company's operations. The Board's
reasoning for any departure to the Recommendations is explained below.
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Corporate Governance Statement (unaudited)

Best Practice Recommendations Compliance Comment

2.6 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 2.

Complies The Corporate Governance Policy sets out the board
function and composition, and this policy is available on
the company’s website at www.telpacific.com.au.

3 Promote ethical and responsible
decision-making

3.1 Companies should establish a code of
conduct and disclose the code or a
summary of the code as to:
• the practices necessary to maintain
confidence in the company’s integrity
• the practices necessary to take into
account their legal obligations and the
reasonable expectations of their
stakeholders
• the responsibility and accountability of
individuals for reporting and investigating
reports of unethical practices.

Complies The Board has adopted a charter that formalises the roles
and responsibilities of the Board.  

The Corporate Governance Policy provides that the
company actively promote a set of values designed to
assist all personnel in their dealings with each other,
competitors, customers and the community.

The Audit and Risk Committee overviews areas of risk in
the company and provides further guidance on policies
and practices required to assure confidence in the
company’s integrity.

The company is committed to doing business honestly and
fairly and competing on its merits and complying with all
relevant laws and statutory obligations. The company has
put in place a formal Trade Practices Compliance
program.

3.2 Companies should establish a policy
concerning diversity and disclose the
policy or a summary of that policy. The
policy should include requirements for the
board to establish measurable objectives
for achieving gender diversity for the
board to assess annually both the
objectives and progress in achieving
them.

Complies The Company recognises the importance of diversity and
values the competitive advantage that is gained from a
diverse workforce. The Board has developed a Diversity
Policy to establish measurable objectives for achieving
gender diversity.

3.3 Companies should disclose in each
annual report the measurable objectives
for achieving gender diversity set by the
board in accordance with the diversity
policy and progress towards achieving
them.

Complies Objectives set in June 2013 to improve the proportion of
women engaged by the group by the end of financial year
2015 were as follows:
- In the whole organisation:  45%   
- In senior executive positions (excluding executive
directors):  25% 
- On the Board:  15%

3.4 Companies should disclose in each
annual report the proportion of women
employees in the whole organisation,
women in senior executive positions and
women on the board.

Complies As at 30 June 2014, the proportion of women engaged by
the group were as follows:
- In the whole organisation:  38%   
- In senior executive positions (excluding executive
directors):  13% 
- On the Board:  0%

3.5 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 3.

Complies The Diversity Policy is available on the Company’s website 
at www.telpacific.com.au.  
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Corporate Governance Statement (unaudited)

Best Practice Recommendations Compliance Comment

4 Safeguard integrity in financial
reporting

4.1 The board should establish an audit
committee.

Complies The Board has appointed an Audit and Risk Committee.

4.2 The audit committee should be structured
so that it:
• consists only of non-executive directors
• consists of a majority of independent
directors
• is chaired by an independent chair, who
is not chair of the board
• has at least three members.

Does not 
Comply

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises the two non-
executive directors. The Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee (Stephe Wilks) is not the Chairman of the
Board.

4.3 The audit committee should have a
formal charter.

Complies The Audit and Risk Committee charter is set out in the
company’s Corporate Governance Policy.

4.4 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 4.

Complies The Corporate Governance Policy sets out the Audit and
Risk Committee charter and this policy is available on the
company’s website at www.telpacific.com.au.

5 Make timely and balanced disclosure

5.1 Companies should establish written
policies designed to ensure compliance
with ASX Listing Rule disclosure
requirements and to ensure accountability
at a senior executive level for that
compliance and disclose those policies or
a summary of those policies.

Complies The company has a continuous disclosure program in
place designed to ensure the factual presentation of the
company’s financial position.

The Corporate Governance Policy provides that
shareholders are to be kept informed of all major
developments affecting the company's activities and state
of affairs through announcements to the ASX.

Given the size of the company and the skills of the Board,
disclosure matters are ultimately reviewed by the Board
following executive management advice and information.

5.2 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 5.

Complies The Corporate Governance Policy is available on the
company’s website at www.telpacific.com.au.
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Corporate Governance Statement (unaudited)

Best Practice Recommendations Compliance Comment

6 Respect the rights of shareholders

6.1 Companies should design a
communications policy for promoting
effective communication with
shareholders and encouraging their
participation at general meetings and
disclose their policy or a summary of that
policy.

Complies The company’s Corporate Governance Policy provides
that the Board is responsible for communicating with and
protecting the rights and interests of all shareholders.  

The policy includes a shareholder communications
strategy which aims to ensure that shareholders are
informed of all major developments affecting the
company's activities.

6.2 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 6.

Complies All relevant announcements made are placed on the
company’s website at www.telpacific.com.au after they
have been released to the ASX.

7 Recognise and manage risk

7.1 Companies should establish policies for
the oversight and management of
material business risks and disclose a
summary of those policies.

Complies The Board has appointed an Audit and Risk Committee
with responsibility for the effectiveness of risk
management and internal compliance and control.

7.2 The board should require management to
design and implement the risk
management and internal control system
to manage the company’s material
business risks and report to it on whether
those risks are being managed
effectively. The board should disclose
that management has reported to it as to
the effectiveness of the company’s
management of its material business
risks.

Complies A risk management framework program has been put in
place to manage the company’s material business and
financial risks, and management is required to report
periodically to confirm that those risks are being managed
effectively.

7.3 The board should disclose whether it has
received assurance from the chief
executive officer (or equivalent) and the
chief financial officer (or equivalent) that
the declaration provided in accordance
with section 295A of the Corporations Act
is founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal control and that
the system is operating effectively in all
material respects in relation to financial
reporting risks. 

Complies The Board requires the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer to make such a declaration in
accordance with S295A of the Corporations Act 2001 at
the relevant time.

7.4 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 7.

Complies The Corporate Governance Policy sets out the internal
control framework and this policy is available on the
company’s website at www.telpacific.com.au.
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Corporate Governance Statement (unaudited)

Best Practice Recommendations Compliance Comment

8 Encourage enhanced performance

8.1 The board should establish a
remuneration committee.

Complies The Board has appointed a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.

8.2 The remuneration committee should be
structured so that it:
• consists of a majority of independent
directors             
• is chaired by an independent chair
• has at least three members.

Complies The Remuneration and Nomination Committee comprises
the two independent non-executive directors and Chief
Executive Officer.  The chairman is Greg McCann.

8.3 Companies should clearly distinguish the
structure of non-executive directors’
remuneration from that of executive
directors and senior executives.

Complies The company’s constitution provides that the remuneration
of non-executive directors will be not more than the
aggregate fixed sum determined by a general meeting.
The aggregate remuneration has been set at an amount of
$350,000 per annum.    

Those remuneration arrangements are separate from
those applicable to executive directors and senior
executives; and non-executive directors do not participate
in the company’s performance incentive plan.

8.4 Companies should provide the
information indicated in the Guide to
reporting on Principle 8.

Complies The remuneration of all directors is disclosed in each
year’s Annual Report.

The Corporate Governance Policy sets out the
remuneration guideline and this policy is available on the
company’s website at www.telpacific.com.au.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in 
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2014 2013
Note $ $

Revenue 2 13,107,200        15,544,262        
Cost of sales (9,356,483)         (12,503,324)       
Gross profit 3,750,717          3,040,938          
Other income 2 806,521             2,365,926          
Operating expenses (3,645,231)         (2,323,687)         
Employee benefits expense (2,481,337)         (1,808,509)         
Earnings before interest expense, taxation, depreciation, amortisation 
and impairment (EBITDA) (1,569,330)         1,274,668          

Depreciation and amortisation (280,379)            (307,468)            
Impairment (6,326,508)         -                         
Earnings before interest expense and taxation (EBIT) (8,176,217)         967,200             
Finance costs (198,245)            (438,289)            

(Loss)/profit before income tax 3 (8,374,462)         528,911             
Income tax (expense)/benefit 4 (293,533)            480,960             
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (8,667,995)         1,009,871          

Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 29 14,067,257        2,831,944          

Net profit 5,399,262          3,841,815          

Other comprehensive income
Amounts that may subsequently be transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (112,755)            (44,789)              
Other comprehensive loss for the period, net of tax (112,755)            (44,789)              

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,286,507          3,797,026          

(Loss)/profit attributable to Members of Tel.Pacific Limited
 -  Continuing operations (8,667,995)         1,009,871          
 -  Discontinued operations 14,067,257        2,831,944          

5,399,262          3,841,815          

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to Members of Tel.Pacific Limited
 -  Continuing operations (8,780,750)         965,082             
 -  Discontinued operations 14,067,257        2,831,944          

5,286,507          3,797,026          

Earnings per share for the year attributable to the members of 
Tel.Pacific Limited Cents Cents

Earnings per share 
 -  Basic earnings per share 5 50.36                 33.54                 
 -  Diluted earnings per share 5 50.36                 33.16                 

Earnings per share - Continuing operations
 -  Basic earnings per share 5 (80.85)                8.82                   
 -  Diluted earnings per share 5 (80.85)                8.72                   

Earnings per share - Discontinued operations
 -  Basic earnings per share 5 131.21               24.72                 
 -  Diluted earnings per share 5 131.21               24.44                 
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.

Restated (1)

2014 2013
Note $ $

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,452,276          2,902,033          
Trade and other receivables 9 1,109,681          5,971,285          
Inventories 10 147,036             132,074             
Other assets 11 11,722,574        7,917,598          
Total Current Assets 15,431,567        16,922,990        

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 414,142             1,775,721          
Intangible assets 14 -                         20,528,774        
Deferred tax assets 4 -                         3,689,085          
Total Non-Current Assets 414,142             25,993,580        

TOTAL ASSETS 15,845,709        42,916,570        

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 4,190,732          15,332,036        
Borrowings 16 -                         2,253,955          
Income tax payable 555,616             -                         
Short term provisions 17 1,386,606          1,192,992          
Unearned revenue 1,263,398          15,253,615        
Total Current Liabilities 7,396,352          34,032,598        

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 16 -                         1,566,049          
Long term provisions 17 200,026             251,308             
Deferred tax liabilities 4 -                         1,109,968          
Total Non-Current Liabilities 200,026             2,927,325          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,596,378          36,959,923        

NET ASSETS 8,249,331          5,956,647          

EQUITY
Issued capital 18 9,221,511          8,998,970          
Reserves 19 (102,289)            485,550             
Accumulated Losses (869,891)            (3,527,873)         
TOTAL EQUITY 8,249,331          5,956,647          

(1) During the current year an error impacting the prior year has been identified and
corrected via a prior year adjustment. See note 30 for more details.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.

Retained
Earnings/

Issued (Accumulated
Capital Reserves Losses) Total

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2012 8,998,970        681,567           (7,520,916)       2,159,621        

Profit for the year -                       -                       3,841,815        3,841,815        
Other comprehensive income -                       (44,789)            -                       (44,789)            
Total comprehensive income for the year -                       (44,789)            3,841,815        3,797,026        

Transactions with Shareholders
Transfer relating to cancellation of unissued shares -                       (151,228)          151,228           -                       

Balance at 30 June 2013 8,998,970        485,550           (3,527,873)       5,956,647        

Balance at 1 July 2013 8,998,970        485,550           (3,527,873)       5,956,647        

Profit for the year -                       -                   5,399,262        5,399,262        
Other comprehensive income -                       (112,755)          -                       (112,755)          
Total comprehensive income for the year -                       (112,755)          5,399,262        5,286,507        

Transactions with Shareholders
Payments related to ESOP shares 222,541           -                   -                       222,541           
Dividend paid -                       -                   (3,216,364)       (3,216,364)       
Transfer relating to Employee Equity Benefit Reserve -                       (475,084)          475,084           -                       

Balance at 30 June 2014 9,221,511        (102,289)          (869,891)          8,249,331        
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2014 2013
Note $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 64,631,435         91,505,840        
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (67,779,784)        (89,489,882)       
Interest received 149,940              127,015             
Interest and other financial costs paid (270,486)             (714,496)            
Income tax received -                          1,353                 
NET CASH (USED IN)/PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8 (3,268,895)          1,429,830          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (155,818)             (377,192)            
Net proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale -                          400,000             
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets -                          49,663               
Net proceeds from disposal  of calling card business 19,000,000         -                     
(Payment to)/proceeds from bank deposits (9,211,217)          1,261,972          
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 9,632,965           1,334,443          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of finance lease liabilities -                          (5,832)                
Repayment of commercial bills -                          (1,100,000)         
Repayment of vendor notes (3,820,004)          (2,904,996)         
Dividends paid (2,993,823)          -                         
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (6,813,827)          (4,010,828)         

Net decrease in cash held (449,757)             (1,246,555)         
Cash held at the beginning of the financial year 2,902,033           4,148,588          

CASH AT THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 8 2,452,276           2,902,033          

25

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Basis of Preparation

Parent entity information

New, revised or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 

Any significant impact on the accounting policies of the consolidated entity from the adoption of these Accounting
Standards and Interpretations are disclosed below.

The adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial
performance or position of the consolidated entity. The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most
relevant to the consolidated entity:

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001 as applicable to for-profit entities.

The consolidated financial report of the Group also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated, with all balances being presented in
Australian dollars. 

This financial report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of Tel.Pacific Limited and the controlled
entities (consolidated group or group).

Tel.Pacific Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia, whose shares are publicly
traded on the Australian Securities Exchange, under the ticker TPC.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs except where applicable as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has been
applied. 

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in a financial
report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply.
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the consolidated financial statements and notes also
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this
financial report are presented below. They have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

The financial report of Tel.Pacific Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2014 was authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Tel.Pacific Board of Directors on 29 August 2014.

The Group has reported a profit for the year of $5.40 million and net current assets at 30 June 2014 of $8.04 million. In
preparing the financial report management has adopted the going concern basis of preparation which envisages the
realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. In reaching their conclusion on the
basis of preparation management prepared forecasts covering a 5 year period which demonstrate cash generation
sufficient to enable the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due.

In accordance with Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the consolidated entity only.
Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in Note 28.

The consolidated entity has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

Any new, revised or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early
adopted.

26

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted (continued)

Accounting Policies

(a) Principles of Consolidation

(b) Business Combination

Consideration transferred for the acquisition comprises the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the acquirer. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any
deferred consideration payable is discounted to present value using the entity's incremental borrowing rate. Acquisition
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The consolidated entity has applied AASB 119 and its consequential amendments from 1 July 2013. The standard
eliminates the corridor approach for the deferral of gains and losses; streamlines the presentation of changes in assets
and liabilities arising from defined benefit plans, including requiring remeasurements to be presented in other
comprehensive income; and enhances the disclosure requirements for defined benefit plans. The standard also changed
the definition of short-term employee benefits, from 'due to' to 'expected to' be settled within 12 months. Annual leave that
is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months is now discounted allowing for expected salary levels in the future
period when the leave is expected to be taken.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 13

Where controlled entities have entered or left the group during the year the financial performance of those entities are
included only for the period of the year that they were controlled. A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

All intercompany balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, including any unrealised profits or
losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are as applied by the parent entity. 

Business combinations occur where control over another business is obtained and results in the consolidation of its
assets and liabilities. All business combinations, including those involving entities under common control, are accounted
for by applying the acquisition method.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of entities controlled by Tel.Pacific
Limited at the end of the reporting period. A controlled entity is any entity over which Tel.Pacific Limited has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from the entity's activities. Control will generally exist
when the parent owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity. In
assessing the power to govern, the existence and effect of holdings of actual and potential voting rights are also
considered.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated entity has applied AASB 10 from 1 July 2013, which has a new definition of 'control'. Control exists
when the reporting entity is exposed, or has the rights, to variable returns from its involvement with another entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its 'power' over that other entity. A reporting entity has power when it has rights
that give it the current ability to direct the activities that significantly affect the investee's returns. The consolidated entity
not only has to consider its holdings and rights but also the holdings and rights of other shareholders in order to
determine whether it has the necessary power for consolidation purposes. The application of this standard has not
changed the assessment of subsidiaries.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

AASB 119 Employee Benefits (September 2011) and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)

The consolidated entity has applied AASB 13 and its consequential amendments from 1 July 2013. The standard
provides a single robust measurement framework, with clear measurement objectives, for measuring fair value using the
'exit price' and provides guidance on measuring fair value when a market becomes less active. The 'highest and best use'
approach is used to measure non-financial assets whereas liabilities are based on transfer value. The standard requires
increased disclosures where fair value is used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Business Combination (continued)

(c) Income Tax

 - the initial recognition of goodwill; or

   the accounting profit or taxable income at the time of the transaction. 

(d) Inventories

The income tax expense or benefit represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is calculated on
accounting profit after adjustment for any non-taxable and non-deductible items. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. It is calculated using the
tax rates that have been enacted or are substantially enacted at reporting date.

The current tax and deferred tax is recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items directly charged or credited to equity, in which case the current
and deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.

Tel.Pacific Limited, as the head entity in the tax consolidated group, recognises, in addition to its own, the current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of all entities in the group.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

 - the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither

Inventories are initially measured and recorded at cost and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
liabilities arises from:

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and for carrying forward of unused tax losses
and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carrying forward of unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net
settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists, the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it
is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur in
future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled. 

Effective 1 July 2003, for the purposes of income taxation, Tel.Pacific Limited and its 100% owned Australian subsidiaries
formed a tax consolidated group. As part of the election to enter tax consolidation, the tax consolidated group is treated
as a single entity for income tax purposes. Gotalk Pty Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries joined the tax
consolidated group upon acquisition on 23 December 2011.

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will be occurring in the foreseeable future. 

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the acquirer's share of net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset                  Depreciation Rate
Buildings                                    2%
Leasehold Improvements            13%
Plant and Equipment                  20% - 33%
Motor Vehicles                          15%

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale

(f) Leases

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding freehold land,
is depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the consolidated entity commencing from the time the
asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of
the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of assets held for sale continue to be recognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to
the consolidated entity. Gains or losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or
loss.

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-current asset or disposal group to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell of a non-
current asset or disposal group, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. For non-current assets or disposal groups to be classified as held for sale, they
must be available for immediate sale in their present condition and their sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale are presented
separately on the face of the statement of financial position. The liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale
are presented separately on the face of the statement of financial position, in current liabilities.

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the
legal ownership, are transferred to entities in the consolidated group are classified as finance leases. 

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows
which will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been
discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

29

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(f) Leases (continued)

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their useful lives or the lease term. 

(g) Financial Instruments

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Loans and Receivables

Held to Maturity Investments

Financial Liabilities
Non derivative financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

Impairment

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred
to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits
associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to
another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

These investments have fixed maturities, and it is the group's intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held to
maturity investments held by the group are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

At each reporting date, the group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been
impaired. For the case of available for sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in value of the instrument is
considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. Impairment loses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs where the instrument is not classified as
at fair value through profit or loss. Transactions costs related to instruments classified as at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Financial instruments are classified and measured as set out below.

Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease
liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight line basis over the life of
the lease term. 

Financial instruments, incorporating financial assets and financial liabilities, are recognised when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Trade date accounting is adopted for financial assets that are
delivered within timeframes established by marketplace convention.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of Assets

(i) Intangibles

Goodwill

Acquired Intangible Assets

(j) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Functional and Presentational Currency

Transactions and Balances

Group Companies

 - Assets and liabilities are translated at year end exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date;
 - Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and
 - Retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets that are considered to have a finite life are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of expected
benefit. Intangible assets that are considered to have an indefinite life are not amortised but tested for impairment in
accordance with note 1 (h) on an annual basis, or where an indication of impairment exists.

The functional currency of each group entity is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the parent
entity's functional and presentational currency. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year end exchange rate. Non monetary items
measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate  at the date when fair values were determined. 

Intangible assets acquired either as part of business combinations or through separate acquisitions are recorded at their
fair value at the date of acquisition and recognised separately from goodwill. Management judgment is applied to
determine the appropriate fair value of identifiable intangible assets. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to the extent that
the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the group's
presentational currency are translated as follows:

At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying values of assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of
the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the
asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill is initially recorded as the excess of the sum of the consideration paid and the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the entity acquired as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity disposed.  Goodwill is not amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(j) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances (continued)

(k) Employee Benefits

Annual Leave/Long Service Leave

Superannuation

Share-based Payments

(l) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(m) Trade Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost less any provision for impairment loss.

(n) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost.

(o) Provisions

Contributions are made by the consolidated entity to employee superannuation funds and are charged as expenses when
incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written
off by reducing the carrying amount directly. Provision for impairment of trade receivables is used when there is objective
evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. 

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within other expenses. When a trade receivable for
which an impairment loss had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against the
provision account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit
or loss.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. 

The group operates equity-settled share-based payment employee share and option schemes. The fair value of the
equity to which employees become entitled is measured at grant date and is recognised as an expense over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of shares is ascertained as the market bid price. The fair
value of options is ascertained using a Black-Scholes pricing model which incorporates all market vesting conditions.
The number of shares and options expected to vest is reviewed and adjusted at each reporting date such that the amount
recognised for services received as consideration for the equity instruments granted shall be based on the number of
equity instruments that eventually vest. 

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the group's foreign currency
translation reserve in the consolidated statement of financial position. These differences are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which the operation is disposed. 

Provision is made for the consolidated entity's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees
to reporting date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs. Employee benefits payable later than one year
have been measured at the present value of the future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Unearned Revenue

(q) Revenue Recognition

(r) Goods and Services Tax

(s) Commission costs

(t) Discontinued operations

(u) Earnings per Share

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to customers. A sales incentive
provided to a customer in the form of non-cash consideration, for example bonus time, is considered to be a separate
deliverable in a multiple deliverable arrangement. Sales revenue is allocated proportionally to the aggregate of the
service paid for and the incentive, and is recognised when the customer utilises the incentive i.e. when Tel.Pacific
provides the service.

Commission costs are recognised as a cost of sale in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
proportion to revenue recognised. The effective commission charge recognised is based on an analysis of actual
commissions incurred. The key assumption used in the calculation of commission costs is the effective rate which
represents the average rate of actual commission paid over a period of time. Starting as of 1 July 2010, the effective rate
has changed from the average rate of actual commission paid over a period of three years to the rolling average rate of
actual commission paid over a period of three months. In managements view a three month period ensures that the
commission cost recognised is an accurate reflection of the costs incurred in relation to revenue recognised. Were this
assumption to change the absolute value of commission costs recognised in cost of sales would change.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon delivery of the goods sold. If the entity is acting as an agent under a
sales arrangement, the revenue will be recorded on a net basis, being the gross amount billed less the amount paid to
the supplier. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

Revenues and expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense.

Unearned revenue represents the unused component of prepaid mobile products as at the reporting date and relates to
cards that have been activated.

Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST due,
but not paid, to the Australian Taxation Office is included under payables.

A discontinued operation is a component of the consolidated entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the face of the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Tel.Pacific Limited divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statements on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) Earnings per Share (continued)

(v) Segment Reporting

(w) Prior Period Adjustment

(x) Comparatives

(y) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Provision for impairment of receivables

Estimation of commission costs

Goodwill impairment

Surplus lease provision

An error affecting the prior period was identified in this period in relation to the recognition of unbilled receivables and
corresponding unearned revenue. In accordance with AASB 108 "Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates
and Errors", prior period balances have been restated and the impact of these adjustments is disclosed in more detail in
note 30.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors.

The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowledge and
best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current
trends and consolidated data, obtained both externally and within the group. 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as adjusted net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Tel.Pacific Limited
divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the period.

The consolidated entity tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment,
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1 (h). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of assumptions, including estimated discount rates based on the current cost of capital and
growth rates of the estimated future cash flows. See Note 14 for more details.

Where required by accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in the current
year.

Provision is made for the anticipated shortfall in rental recovery against non-cancellable lease payments on premises
which become excess to requirements. The provision is calculated as the present value of the future lease payments that
the consolidated entity is obligated to make in respect of surplus lease space under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements, less estimated future sub-lease revenue.

The provision for impairment of receivables assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. The level of
provision is assessed by taking into account the recent sales experience, the ageing of receivables, historical collection
rates and specific knowledge of the individual debtors financial position.

The key assumption used in the calculation of commission costs in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income is the effective rate which represents the average rate of actual commission paid
over a period of time. Starting as of 1 July 2010, the effective rate has changed from the average rate of actual
commission paid over a period of three years to the rolling average rate of actual commission paid over a period of three
months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(z) Recently Issued Accounting Standards to be Applied in Future Reporting Periods

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and its consequential amendments

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The disclosure
requirements of AASB 136 'Impairment of Assets' have been enhanced to require additional information about the fair
value measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposals.
Additionally, if measured using a present value technique, the discount rate is required to be disclosed. The adoption of
these amendments from 1 July 2014 may increase the disclosures by the consolidated entity.

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014.
The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations,
most relevant to the consolidated entity, are set out below.

This standard and its consequential amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017 and completes phases I and III of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39 (AASB 139) 'Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement'. This standard introduces new classification and measurement models for financial
assets, using a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value. The
accounting for financial liabilities continues to be classified and measured in accordance with AASB 139, with one
exception, being that the portion of a change of fair value relating to the entity's own credit risk is to be presented in other
comprehensive income unless it would create an accounting mismatch. Chapter 6 'Hedge Accounting' supersedes the
general hedge accounting requirements in AASB 139 and provides a new simpler approach to hedge accounting that is
intended to more closely align with risk management activities undertaken by entities when hedging financial and non-
financial risks. The consolidated entity will adopt this standard and the amendments from 1 July 2017 but the impact of its
adoption is yet to be assessed by the consolidated entity.

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and amends AASB
139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' to permit continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances
where a derivative (designated as hedging instrument) is novated from one counter party to a central counterparty as a
consequence of laws or regulations. The adoption of these amendments from 1 July 2014 will not have a material impact
on the consolidated entity.

AASB 2013-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Investment Entities
These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and allow entities
that meet the definition of an 'investment entity' to account for their investments at fair value through profit or loss. An
investment entity is not required to consolidate investments in entities it controls, or apply AASB 3 'Business
Combinations' when it obtains control of another entity, nor is it required to equity account or proportionately consolidate
associates and joint ventures if it meets the criteria for exemption in the standard. The adoption of these amendments
from 1 July 2014 will have no impact on the consolidated entity.

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The amendments add
application guidance to address inconsistencies in the application of the offsetting criteria in AASB 132 'Financial
Instruments: Presentation', by clarifying the meaning of 'currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off'; and clarifies
that some gross settlement systems may be considered to be equivalent to net settlement. The adoption of the
amendments from 1 July 2014 will not have a material impact on the consolidated entity.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies (continued)

(z) Recently Issued Accounting Standards to be Applied in Future Reporting Periods (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts With Customers
This accounting standard is effective from 1 January 2017. It was issued in May 2014 and as such it's effect has not been
fully assessed.

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and affects four
Accounting Standards as follows: Clarifies the 'meaning of effective IFRSs' in AASB 1 'First-time Adoption of Australian
Accounting Standards'; Clarifies that AASB 3 'Business Combination' excludes from its scope the accounting for the
formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself; Clarifies that the scope of the
portfolio exemption in AASB 13 'Fair Value Measurement' includes all contracts accounted for within the scope of AASB
139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' or AASB 9 'Financial Instruments', regardless of whether they
meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in AASB 132 'Financial Instruments: Presentation';
and Clarifies that determining whether a specific transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as
defined in AASB 3 'Business Combinations' and investment property as defined in AASB 140 'Investment Property'
requires the separate application of both standards independently of each other. The adoption of these amendments from
1 July 2014 will not have a material impact on the consolidated entity.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and affects several
Accounting Standards as follows: Amends the definition of 'vesting conditions' and 'market condition' and adds definitions
for 'performance condition' and 'service condition' in AASB 2 'Share-based Payment'; Amends AASB 3 'Business
Combinations' to clarify that contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability shall be measured at fair
value at each reporting date; Amends AASB 8 'Operating Segments' to require entities to disclose the judgements made
by management in applying the aggregation criteria; Clarifies that AASB 8 only requires a reconciliation of the total
reportable segments assets to the entity's assets, if the segment assets are reported regularly; Clarifies that the issuance
of AASB 13 'Fair Value Measurement' and the amending of AASB 139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement' and AASB 9 'Financial Instruments' did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and
payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amount, if the effect of discounting is immaterial; Clarifies that in
AASB 116 'Property, Plant and Equipment' and AASB 138 'Intangible Assets', when an asset is revalued the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount (i.e. proportional
restatement of accumulated amortisation); and Amends AASB 124 'Related Party Disclosures' to clarify that an entity
providing key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a 'related
party' of the reporting entity. The adoption of these amendments from 1 July 2014 will not have a material impact on the
consolidated entity.

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2:   Revenue

2014 2013
$ $

Operating Activities
  - Rendering of Services 13,107,200     15,544,262     

13,107,200     15,544,262     
Other Income
  - Gain on Cancellation of Vendor Notes (1) -                     1,275,000       
  - Net Gain on Acquisition of Wholesale Business (2) -                     541,297          
  - Net Gain Arising from Payment and Settlement Arrangement -                     1,816,297       

  - Interest Income 177,857          136,888          
  - Written Back Provision for Employee Bonus -                     380,000          
  - Transition Service Income 583,780          -                      
  - Sundry Income 44,884            32,741            

806,521          549,629          

806,521          2,365,926       

Note 3:   Profit Before Tax

2014 2013
$ $

Occupancy Expense 433,076          224,358          
Advertising and Promotion Expense 646,990          399,219          
Communication Expense 31,075            58,536            
Professional Fees 1,383,996       677,997          
Bank and Merchant Fees 80,043            100,668          
Travel Expense 117,173          82,101            
Bad and Doubtful Debts Expense 49,069            88,888            
Foreign Exchange (Gains)/Losses (701)               47,700            
Call Centre Expenses 670,620          489,315          
Other Expenses 233,890          154,905          

3,645,231       2,323,687       

(1) On 14 December 2012, the Company entered into a Payment and Settlement Agreement with certain of the previous
gotalk shareholders (including the key former executives). The agreement resulted in the cancellation of $1,275,000 of
vendor notes with no consideration being paid by the Company for the cancellation.

(2) The net gain on acquisition of the wholesale business represents the excess of the fair value of the assets and
liabilities acquired over the consideration paid arising from the acquisition accounting process ($1,156,297) less the
participating right ($615,000) forgone following the acquisition. Refer to Note 23.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 3:   Profit Before Tax (continued)

2014 2013
$ $

Employee Benefits Expenses 2,288,224       1,685,476       
Superannuation 193,113          123,033          
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 2,481,337       1,808,509       

Depreciation of Non-current Assets 280,379          307,468          
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 280,379          307,468          

Impairment of Goodwill(1) 6,326,508       -                      
Total Impairment 6,326,508       -                      

2014 2013
$ $

Finance Costs 198,245          438,288          

Note 4:   Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

2014 2013
$ $

(a) Income Tax Expense

The major components of income tax expense are:

Current tax expense 555,616          -                      
Underprovision/(overprovision) in respect of prior years -                     2,449              

(577,840)        308,342          

1,634,161       238,008          
Derecognition of deferred tax 1,522,801       -                      

3,134,738       548,799          

Income tax/(benefit) attributable to
Continuing operations 293,533          (480,960)         
Discontinued operations 2,841,205       1,029,759       

3,134,738       548,799          

Deferred tax movement arising from origination and reversal
of temporary differences
Deferred tax movement arising from the utilisation of tax
losses

(1) Impairment of goodwill in the current year relates to the Australian CGU and arose following a downgrading in forecast
revenue which combined with a higher allocation of fixed costs following the disposal of the calling card business leads to
a weaker outlook of future cash flows. Refer to Note 14 for further details regarding impairment.

38

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 4:   Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit (continued)

2014 2013
$ $

(Loss)/Profit before income tax expense - Continuing operations (8,374,462)     528,911          
Profit before income tax expense - Discontinued operations 16,908,463     3,861,703       

8,534,000       4,390,613       

2,560,200       1,317,184       

Non-assessable items (948,263)        (770,834)         
Underprovision in respect of prior years -                     2,449              
Derecognition of prior year's deferred tax 1,522,801       -                      
Income tax expense attributable to profit from
ordinary activities 3,134,738       548,799          

(c) Deferred Tax Balances
Charged

Opening Charged to directly to Derecognition Closing
Balance Income Equity of deferred tax Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment 367,409         (46,430)        -                    -                     320,979          
Deferred commission costs 1,182,413      (403,428)      -                    -                     778,985          
Others 14,426           (4,422)          -                    -                     10,004            

Balance as at 30 June 2013 1,564,248      (454,280)      -                    -                     1,109,968       

Property, plant and equipment 320,979         (325,783)      -                    4,804              -                      
Deferred commission costs 778,985         (788,114)      -                    9,129              -                      
Others 10,004           42,128         -                    (52,132)          -                      

Balance as at 30 June 2014 1,109,968      (1,071,769)   -                    (38,199)          -                      

(b) The prima facie income tax expense/(benefit) on profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities differs from the income tax expense/(benefit) provided in the financial
statements and is reconciled as follows:

Profit before income tax expense
Prima facie tax expense on profit from ordinary activities at
30% (2013: 30%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 4:   Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit (continued)

(c) Deferred Tax Balances (continued)
Charged

Opening Charged to directly to Derecognition Closing
Balance Income Equity of deferred tax Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Deferred tax assets

Provision 1,123,613      (230,217)      -                    -                     893,396          
Assessed loss 2,666,718      (238,008)      -                    -                     2,428,710       
Others 899,364         (532,385)      -                    -                     366,979          

Balance as at 30 June 2013 4,689,695      (1,000,610)   -                    -                     3,689,085       

Provision 893,396         (263,322)      -                    (630,074)        -                      
Assessed loss (1) 2,428,710      (1,634,161)   -                    (794,549)        -                      
Others 366,979         (230,602)      -                    (136,377)        -                      

Balance as at 30 June 2014 3,689,085      (2,128,085)   -                    (1,561,000)     -                      

(d) Tax Consolidation

(1) The consolidated entity has derecognised unused tax losses to the extent that it is not probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The unused tax loss carried forward is $2,648,496.

Effective 1 July 2003, for the purposes of income taxation, Tel.Pacific Limited and its 100% owned Australian subsidiaries
formed a tax consolidated group. As part of the election to enter tax consolidation, the tax consolidated group is treated as 
a single entity for income tax purposes. Gotalk Pty Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries joined the tax consolidated
group upon acquisition on 23 December 2011.

Tel.Pacific Limited, as the head entity in the tax consolidated group, recognises, in addition to its own transactions, the
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of all entities in the group.

40

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 5:   Earnings Per Share

2014 2013
$ $

Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations (80.85)            8.82                
From discontinued operations 131.21            24.72              
Total basic earnings per share 50.36              33.54              

Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations (80.85)            8.72                
From discontinued operations 131.21            24.44              
Total diluted earnings per share 50.36              33.16              

(8,667,995)     1,009,871       
14,067,257     2,831,944       

Number Number (2)

in the calculation of basic EPS 10,721,241     114,556,860   
in the calculation of diluted EPS (1) 10,721,241     115,855,022   

Note 6:   Dividends Paid and Proposed

(a)  Recognised Amounts

Cents per Share Total Cents per Share Total
$ $

(i)  Dividends declared paid during the year:
Special dividend - fully franked                 3.0      3,216,364                       -                       - 

Total                 3.0      3,216,364                       -                       - 

Franking Credit Balance
2014 2013

$ $

1,211,458       2,589,900       
1,211,458       2,589,900       

-                 -                      
1,211,458       2,589,900       

20132014

- Impact on franking account of dividends proposed or declared before
the financial report was authorised for issue but not recognised as a
distribution to  equity holders during period

The amount of franking credits available for the subsequent financial year 
  -  Franking account balance as at the end of the financial year at 30% 
(2013: 30%)
The amount of franking credits available for future reporting periods:

A fully franked special dividend $3,216,364 equivalent to 3 cents per share (107,212,146 shares) was declared on 28
April 2014 with a record date of 5 May 2014 and was paid on 20 May 2014. 

(2) If the effects of the share consolidation are reflected on the prior year figures, the figures used in the basis EPS would
be 11,455,686 and for diluted EPS 11,585,502.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 

Net earnings used in the calculation of continuing operations basic and diluted EPS

(1) Shares due to be issued of 2,837,301 which were subsequently cancelled on 14 December 2012, were included in
diluted EPS calculation. Refer to Note 18 and 23.

Net earnings used in the calculation of discontinued operations basic and diluted EPS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 7:   Auditors Remuneration

2014 2013
$ $

Auditors of Parent Entity
  Audit and review of Financial Reports 149,075           169,924             
  Taxation Services 30,630             35,080               
  Other assurance services 4,500               1,156                 

184,205           206,160             
Other Auditors
  Audit of Financial Report -                   3,066                 
  Taxation Services -                   9,800                 
Total Auditors Remuneration 184,205           219,026             

Note 8:  Cash and Cash Equivalents

2014 2013
$ $

(a) Cash Balance

Cash at bank and in hand 2,452,276        2,902,033          
2,452,276        2,902,033          

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow from 
Operations with Profit after Income Tax

2014 2013
$ $

Profit after income tax 5,399,262        3,841,815          

Non-cash flows in profit
  Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 3,134,738        548,799             
  Depreciation and amortisation 714,429           1,676,204          
  Impairment of goodwill 6,326,508        -                         
  Loss on asset disposals -                       4,657                 
  Gain on cancellation of vendor notes -                       (1,275,000)         
  Gain on disposal of calling card business (13,348,502)     -                         

Changes in assets and liabilities
  Decrease in prepayments 617,320           124,916             
  Decrease in trade & other receivables 5,760,342        4,116,335          
  Decrease in trade & other payables (12,194,828)     (5,045,775)         
  Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 321,836           (2,562,121)         

(3,268,895)       1,429,830          
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 9:   Trade and Other Receivables

2014 2013
$ $

Current
Trade Receivables 1,379,960          7,598,157          
Provision for Impairment of Receivables (499,773)            (1,719,534)         
Other Receivables 229,494             92,662               

1,109,681          5,971,285          

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables and other receivables are detailed below:

Opening balance (1,719,534)         (1,063,724)         
 - Provision for impairment recognised during the year (245,498)            (774,111)            
 - Provision for impairment recognised during acquisition of wholesale business -                         (334,115)            
 - Provision for impairment reversed during the year -                         311,533             
 - Provision for impairment reversed following disposal of calling card business 1,393,468          -                         
 - Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 71,791               140,883             
Closing balance (499,773)            (1,719,534)         

Credit Policy

Ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Not past due 833,449             4,337,465          
Past due 0 - 30 days 6,619                 848,685             
Past due 31 - 60 days 16,052               447,047             
Past due 61 - 90 days 11,325               165,212             
Past due 90 days over 512,515             1,799,748          
Total 1,379,960          7,598,157          

Impairment losses (499,773)            (1,719,534)         
Trade receivables net of provision for impairment 880,187             5,878,623          

Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired at the reporting date was:

Past due 0 - 30 days 1,629                 773,762             
Past due 31 - 60 days 10,952               414,732             
Past due 61 - 90 days 8,015                 95,967               
Past due 90 days over 26,142               256,696             

46,738               1,541,157          

The group requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed terms. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and
are generally on 30-90 days terms. A provision for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that an
individual trade receivable is impaired. All credit and recovery risk associated with trade receivables has been provided
for in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The consolidated entity did not consider there to be a credit risk on the aggregate balance after reviewing credit terms of
customers based on recent collection practices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 10:   Inventories

2014 2013
$ $

Current
Inventories 147,036             132,074             

Note 11:   Other Assets

2014 2013
$ $

Current
Deferred Commission Costs 177,388             4,823,814          
Prepayments 190,797             814,421             
Security Deposit 93,469               229,660             
Bank Deposits (1) 11,260,920        2,049,703          

11,722,574        7,917,598          

(1) Bank deposits include term deposits which are held as security for bank guarantee and merchant facilities amounting to
$2,260,922 (2013: $2,049,703).

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 12:   Controlled Entities

Country     
 of    

Incorporation 2014 2013 2014 2013
% % $ $

Parent Entity 
  Tel.Pacific Limited Australia

Controlled Entities Interest at Cost 
  CovaU Pty Limited (1) Australia 100% 100% 12               12                
  Hello Card Pty Limited Australia 100% 100% 100             100              
  Realtime Mobile Pty Limited Australia 100% 100% 100             100              
  gotalk Pty Limited Australia 100% 100% 9,008,187   9,008,187    
  ACN 074 079 897 Pty Ltd (2) (3) Australia 100% 100% -                  -                   
  Global Card Services Pty Limited (2) Australia 100% 100% -                  -                   
  Gotalk Communications Pty Limited (2) Australia 100% 100% -                  -                   
  Green Communications Australia Pty Limited (2) Australia 100% 100% -                  -                   
  Tel.Pacific ESOP Pty Limited Australia 100% 100% 1                 1                  
  Tel.Pacific (Hong Kong) Limited (4) Hong Kong 0% 100% -                  2,000           
  Tel.Pacific New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100% 100% 8,546          8,546           
  Tel.Pacific Singapore Pte Limited Singapore 100% 100% 86,558        86,558         
Investment in controlled entities 9,103,504   9,105,504    
Impairment losses (4,858,419)  (4,771,861)   
Total investment in controlled entities 4,245,085   4,333,643    

Company's recorded 
amount of Investment

(2) These entities are held indirectly by Tel.Pacific Limited through their parent entity - gotalk Pty Limited, which was
acquired by Tel.Pacific Limited on 23 December 2011. Refer to Note 23.

(1) Rivernet Pty Limited changed its name to CovaU Pty Limited on 25 July 2013.

Effective Interest

(4) Tel.Pacific (Hong Kong) Limited has been deregistered and dissolved as of 27 June 2014.

(3) Cardcall Pty Limited changed its name to ACN 074 079 897 Pty Ltd on 26 August 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 13:   Property, Plant and Equipment
2014 2013

$ $

Leased Plant  & Equipment -                  30,277         
Less: Accumulated Depreciation -                  (30,277)        

-                  -                   

Motor Vehicles 48,388        69,022         
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (41,370)       (49,312)        

7,018          19,710         

Network Equipment & Software 620,766      7,334,537    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (397,787)     (5,868,059)   

222,979      1,466,478    

Office Equipment & Software 991,790      991,629       
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (922,802)     (873,403)      

68,988        118,226       

Office Fittings & Furniture 536,348      519,422       
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (421,191)     (348,115)      

115,157      171,307       

414,142      1,775,721    

Movement in Carrying Amount 

Leased 
Plant & 

Equipment
Motor  

Vehicles

Network 
Equipment 
& Software

Office 
Equipment 
& Software

Office 
Fittings & 
Furniture Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

2014
Balance at the beginning of the year -                 19,710     1,466,478    118,226      171,307      1,775,721    

Additions -                 -               100,725       30,136        24,957        155,818       
Disposal -                 (4,901)      (792,985)      (1,701)        (4,304)         (803,891)      
Depreciation expense -                 (7,791)      (551,572)      (77,808)      (77,258)       (714,429)      
Foreign currency exchange difference -                 -               333              135             455             923              

Balance at the end of the year -                 7,018       222,979       68,988        115,157      414,142       

Leased 
Plant & 

Equipment
Motor  

Vehicles

Network 
Equipment 
& Software

Office 
Equipment 
& Software

Office 
Fittings & 
Furniture Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

2013
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,743         85,969     2,530,216    192,315      313,471      3,124,714    

Additions -                 -               332,539       38,564        6,089          377,192       
Assets classified as held for sale -                 -               399,817       -                 183             400,000       
Disposal -                 (54,320)    (399,817)      -                 (183)            (454,320)      
Depreciation expense (2,741)        (11,939)    (1,400,482)   (112,727)    (148,315)     (1,676,204)   
Foreign currency exchange difference (2)               -               4,205           74               62               4,339           

Balance at the end of the year -                 19,710     1,466,478    118,226      171,307      1,775,721    
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 14:   Intangible Assets

2014 2013
$ $

(a) Reconciliation of Carrying Amounts at the Beginning and End of the Year

Goodwill           7,479,971         19,618,220 
Accumulated Impairment Losses          (7,479,971)          (4,849,448)

                         -         14,768,772 

Brand Name                          -           5,650,000 
                         -           5,650,000 

Patent                          2                         2 
Accumulated Impairment Losses                        (2)                          - 

                         -                         2 

Trademarks                          -              110,000 
                         -              110,000 

Research and Development                          -              160,330 
Accumulated Amortisation                          -             (160,330)

                         -                          - 

                         -         20,528,774 

Movement in Carrying Amount

Goodwill
Balance at the beginning of the year         14,768,772         14,768,772 
Disposal during the year          (8,442,266)                          - 
Impairment          (6,326,506)                          - 
Balance at the end of the year                          -         14,768,772 

Patent  
Balance at the beginning of the year                         2                         2 
Impairment                        (2)                          - 
Balance at the end of the year                          -                         2 

Trademarks
Balance at the beginning of the year              110,000              110,000 
Disposal during the year             (110,000)                          - 
Balance at the end of the year                          -              110,000 

Brand Name
Balance at the beginning of the year           5,650,000           5,650,000 
Disposal during the year          (5,650,000)                          - 
Balance at the end of the year                          -           5,650,000 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 14:   Intangible Assets (continued)

Australian CGU

   - EBITDA growth rates between -1.87% and -1.76% for next five year periods
   - terminal value growth rate -1.76%
   - discount rate

Goodwill and indefinite life brand name acquired through business combinations has been allocated to two individual cash
generating units (CGU) for impairment testing being the Australian and New Zealand CGU.

a. if EBITDA growth rate declined by 1%, impairment charge would be same with all other assumptions remaining
constant.

Based on the value in use calculations, an impairment charge of $6,326,508 has been recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income (2013: $Nil).

(b) Description of the Group's Intangible Assets and Goodwill

After initial recognition, goodwill acquired through business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised but is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis or whenever there is
an indication of impairment.

Brand name, acquired through business combinations with gotalk Limited, has been assessed as having an indefinite life
after considering the expected period from which benefit will be derived from the assets and is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Trademarks, acquired through business combinations, have been assessed as having an indefinite life and are measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(c) Impairment Testing of Goodwill

c. if discount rate increased by 1%, impairment charge would be same with all other assumptions remaining constant.

Management believes the projected revenue and EBITDA growth rates and terminal value growth rate are prudent and
justified, based on current market situation. Discount rates are pre-tax and adjusted to incorporate risks associated with a
particular segment.

As disclosed in Note 1, the directors have made judgments and estimates in respect of impairment testing of goodwill and
intangible assets. Should these estimates not occur the resulting goodwill and intangible assets may vary in carrying
amount. The sensitivities are as follows:

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following key assumptions:

As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill and indefinite life intangibles for the group was $Nil (2013:
$20,528,774).

b. if terminal value growth rate declined by 1%, impairment charge would be same with all other assumptions remaining
constant.

The recoverable amount of the Australian CGU has been determined based on a value in use methodology using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five year period together with a terminal
value. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 19.94% (2013: 19.66%). Variable revenue growth
rates are used.

As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets allocated to Australian CGU was
$Nil and $Nil respectively (2013: $13,648,956, $5,077,491 respectively).

Following the disposal of calling card business in April 2014, the goodwill and indefinite life intangibles relating to the
disposed business, which related to the Australian CGU of $12,399,939 and the New Zealand CGU of $1,802,327, were
derecognised. Following the disposal, the carrying amount of goodwill within the Australian CGU amounted to $6,326,506,
which comprised of goodwill associated with the acquisition of the MTRM platform and related business of $3,800,000 and 
goodwill arising from the acquisition of gotalk mobile $2,526,506.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 14:   Intangible Assets (continued)

New Zealand CGU

Note 15:   Trade and Other Payables

2014 2013
$ $

Current
Trade Payables 2,683,062          12,198,489        
Other Payables 4,600                 4,600                 
Accrued Expenses 1,032,565          2,609,109          
Sundry Payables 147,210             213,942             
Goods and Services Tax Payable 323,295             305,896             

4,190,732          15,332,036        

Note 16:   Borrowings

2014 2013
$ $

Current
Vendor Notes - Refer to Note 23 -                         2,253,955          

-                         2,253,955          

Non Current
Vendor Notes - Refer to Note 23 -                         1,566,049          

-                         1,566,049          

Note 17:   Provisions

2014 2013
$ $

Short Term Provisions
Leave Entitlement (1) 597,035             1,161,418          
Future Rent (2) 41,251               1,754                 
Make Good 298,320             29,820               
Legal Costs (3) 450,000             -                         

1,386,606          1,192,992          

Long Term Provisions
Leave Entitlement (1)

200,026             132,416             
Future Rent -                         118,892             

200,026             251,308             

The New Zealand CGU comprised only calling card operations and therefore following the disposal in April 2014, all
associated goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles have been derecognised.

(c) Impairment Testing of Goodwill (continued)

As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles allocated to New Zealand CGU was
$Nil and $Nil respectively (2013: $1,119,816, $682,511 respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 17:   Provisions (continued)

2014 2013
$ $

Movements in Provisions

(a) Leave Entitlement Provision (Short Term)
Opening balance 1,161,418          779,557             
 - additional provisions 365,320             497,207             
 - reclassified (to)/from long term provision (67,610)              219,056             
 - disposal along with calling card business (181,194)            -                         
 - amount used (680,899)            (334,402)            
Closing balance 597,035             1,161,418          

(b) Future Rent (Short Term)
Opening balance 1,754                 66,000               
 - reclassified from long term provision 118,892             -                         
 - recognised during acquisition of wholesale business -                         65,203               
 - amount used (79,395)              (129,449)            
Closing balance 41,251               1,754                 

(c) Make Good (Short Term)
Opening balance 29,820               177,825             
 - additional provisions 268,500             -                         
 - recognised during acquisition of wholesale business -                         114,348             
 - amount used -                         (262,353)            
Closing balance 298,320             29,820               

(d) Legal Costs (Short Term)
Opening balance -                         -                         
 - additional provisions 450,000             -                         
Closing balance 450,000             -                         

(e) Leave Entitlement Provision (Long Term)
Opening balance 132,416             445,788             
 - additional provisions -                         (94,316)              
 - reclassified from/(to) short term provision 67,610               (219,056)            
Closing balance 200,026             132,416             

(f) Future Rent (Long Term)
Opening balance 118,892             131,476             
 - reclassified to short term provision (118,892)            -                         
 - amount used -                         (12,584)              
Closing balance -                         118,892             

(3) Legal Cost Provisions represent the overall provision for legal costs against notified claims against the Group by third
parties in relation to their contracts and services.

(1) Leave Entitlement Provision represents provision for employee entitlements relating to annual leave and long service
leave. In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service
leave being taken is based on historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits
have been included in Note 1.

(2) Future Rent Provision relates to the difference between the cash payments on the leasehold property and the
accounting charge spread over the life of the lease on a straight line basis. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 18:   Issued Capital

Number $ Number $

(a) Ordinary Shares

Issued and Fully Paid 9,564,524          8,856,015          95,644,985        8,856,015          
Issued and Partially Paid (1) 1,156,717          365,496             11,567,161        142,955             

10,721,241        9,221,511          107,212,146      8,998,970          

(b) Movements in Ordinary Shares on Issue

Balance at the beginning of the year 107,212,146      8,998,970          123,264,964      8,998,970          

Repurchase of shares (2) (3) -                         -                         (16,078,039)       -                         
-                         -                         25,221               -                         

(96,490,905)       -                         -                         -                         
Payments related to ESOP shares -                         222,541             -                         -                         

Balance at the end of the year 10,721,241        9,221,511          107,212,146      8,998,970          

(3) On 28 March 2013, a special resolution for approval of a Selective Buy Back Agreement was passed at a general
meeting to cancel 16,052,818 shares, following the repurchase of these shares under the Payment and Settlement
Agreement. The total number of shares on issue after the cancellation were 107,212,146. Of the total of 16,078,039
shares repurchased, 25,221 shares which were repurchased after the general meeting were transferred to Tel.Pacific
ESOP Pty Limited.

Effective 1 July 1998, the Corporations legislation in place abolished the concepts of authorised capital and par value
shares.  Accordingly, the company does not have authorised capital nor par value in respect of its issued shares.

Ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.

Also cancelled were 2,837,301 unissued shares which were due to be issued as consideration for the acquisition of
Gotalk in December 2011. The related unissued share reserve amounting to $0.2m was reclassified to retained earnings.

(4) On 28 April 2014, a special resolution for approval of the consolidation of the Company's shares on a 1 for 10 basis
was passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting. The share consolidation was effective 26 May 2014.

(2) On 14 December 2012, the Company entered into a Payment and Settlement Agreement with the previous Gotalk
shareholders. Each shareholder signed up to the agreement agrees to the cancellation of their Tel.Pacific Limited shares
for no monetary consideration, with such cancellation to occur by buy-back. All shares were repurchased by the Company
for $Nil consideration. In accordance with AASB 132 when an entity re-acquires its own equity instruments, the
consideration paid is recognised directly as a deduction against equity.

(1) The issue of shares under the Employee Shares Ownership Plan (ESOP) has been treated as issue of share options in
accordance with the pronouncement of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee. Where the
company funds the acquisition of its own shares via a loan to employees with recourse only to the shares, it is treated as
an option grant and accounted for under AASB 2 Share-based Payment. No loan or equity is booked initially. The
Company has effectively given the employee an option exercisable sometime in the future to buy a share at a set price.
For information relating to shares issued under the ESOP during the financial year, refer to Note 25(a). 

2014 2013

Transferred to Tel.Pacific ESOP Pty Limited (2) (3)

Reduction due to share consolidation (4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 18:   Issued Capital (continued)

(c) Capital Management

Note 19:   Reserves

2014 2013
$ $

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,466               55,255               
Loss on translation of overseas controlled entities (112,755)            (44,789)              
Balance at the end of the year (102,289)            10,466               

Employee Equity Benefits Reserve  

Balance at the beginning of the year 475,084             475,084             
Transferred to retained earnings (475,084)            -                         
Balance at the end of the year -                         475,084             

Capital Reserve  

Balance at the beginning of the year -                         151,228             
Transferred to retained earnings (1) -                         (151,228)            
Balance at the end of the year -                         -                         

Total Reserves (102,289)            485,550             

(1) The amount transferred represents the cancellation of unissued shares in accordance with the Payment and Settlement
Agreement dated 14 December 2012 between the Company and the previous gotalk shareholders. Refer to Note 18.

The foreign currency translation reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of foreign controlled entities. 

The employee equity benefits reserve records the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of
their remuneration.

The capital reserve represents the consideration withheld from one gotalk vendor shareholder, amounting to a total of
2,837,301 Tel.Pacific shares. Refer to Note 23.

Management controls the capital of the group in order to maintain a good debt to equity ratio, provide the shareholders
with adequate returns and ensure that the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

The group's capital includes ordinary shares supported by financial assets. 

Apart from the above, there have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the
group since the prior year.

Management effectively manages the group's capital by assessing the group's financial risks and adjusting its capital
structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses include the management of debt
levels, distributions to shareholders, buy-back shares and share issues.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 20:   Capital and Leasing Commitments

2014 2013
$ $

Operating Lease Commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements.

- not later than 1 year 324,796             1,021,997          
- later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 683                    673,842             
Total lease commitments 325,479             1,695,839          

Operating lease for the following types of assets:

2. Rental of office equipment with average lease terms 3 - 5 years

Note 21:   Contingent Liabilities

Note 22:   Related Party Transactions

1. Property lease with a five or six year term and rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rental provisions within
the lease agreement require that the minimum lease payments shall increase by between 3 - 4.25% per annum.

As at 30 June 2014 the consolidated entity has issued bank guarantees totalling $2,260,922 (2013: $2,049,703) for
which term deposits are held to secure this amount.

Apart from the bank guarantees, there are no contingent liabilities as at the date of signing of this report.

Information relating to controlled entities is set out in Note 12. Transactions occurred between certain of these entities
during the period, all of which are eliminated from the consolidated accounts.

During the year, the Company has paid rental totalling $25,525 (2013: $30,940) on normal commercial terms and
conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties, to Jeffrey Ma, in relation to the Brisbane Office.

During the year, the Company has paid rental totalling $22,687 GST inclusive (2013: $27,500) on normal commercial
terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties, to First Goldland Pty Limited, in which
Barry Chan owns 10% shareholding, in relation to the Perth Office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 23: Business Combination

(a)  Payment and Settlement Agreement

(b)  gotalk Wholesale Business

Fair Value Carrying Value
$ $

Net assets recognised at acquisition date 
Trade and other receivables 3,024,285              3,024,285              

Assets held for sale (1) 400,000                 725,460                 
Other current assets 54,364                   54,364                   
Trade and other payables (2,138,103)             (2,138,103)             
Provisions (184,249)                (184,249)                
Total 1,156,297              1,481,757              

Gain arising from acquisition (1,156,297)             
-                            

In addition to the cancellation of issued and unissued shares referred to above, the agreement also resulted in the
cancellation of $1,275,000 of certain outstanding vendor notes with no consideration being paid by the Company for the
cancellation. The net gain of $1,275,000 has been included in other income for prior year.

On 14 December 2012, the Company entered into a Payment and Settlement Agreement with the previous GoTalk
shareholders. Each shareholder signed up to the agreement agreed to the cancellation of their Tel.Pacific Limited shares
for no monetary consideration, with such cancellation to occur by selective buy-back or capital reduction or other means
permitted under the Corporations Act at the discretion of the Company. These shares have effectively been bought back
by the Company at $nil consideration, which falls under AASB 32 paragraph 33 which states that when an entity re-
acquires its own equity instruments, those instruments should be deducted from equity. No gain or loss would be
recognised and all consideration would be recognised directly as a deduction against equity. As no consideration was paid 
there is no deduction against equity.

On 28 March 2013, a special resolution for approval of a Selective Buy Back Agreement was passed at a general meeting
to cancel 16,052,818 shares, following the repurchase of these shares under the Payment and Settlement Agreement.
The total number of shares on issue after the cancellation was 107,212,146. Of the total of 16,078,039 shares
repurchased, 25,221 shares which were repurchased after the general meeting were transferred to Tel.Pacific ESOP Pty
Limited.

Also cancelled were 2,837,301 unissued shares which were due to be issued as consideration for the acquisition of
GoTalk in December 2011. The related unissued share reserve amounting to $0.2m was reclassified to retained earnings.

On 14 December 2012, the Company entered into a Payment and Settlement Agreement with the previous gotalk
shareholders. Following execution of the agreement, the Company was deemed to have acquired the wholesale
business of gotalk Pty Limited (formerly gotalk Limited) in December 2012 for $Nil consideration. As noted in the half year
financial report for the period ended 31 December 2011, Tel.Pacific Limited did not acquire an economic interest in the
gotalk wholesale business on initial acquisition in December 2011.

gotalk Wholesale Business

(1) Assets held for sale constitute a disposal group of assets identified on acquisition by the Company as assets for
immediate disposal representing the wholesale business. On the same date as the payment and settlement agreement
the assets held for sale were disposed of to Symbio Wholesale Pty Limited. Net proceeds after deducting costs to sell of
$1 million representing a payment to the previous gotalk shareholders was $400,000. No gain/loss arose on the disposal.

Disclosures concerning the revenue and profit or loss of the acquired business have not been included as the business
was acquired and disposed on the same date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 24:   Directors and Executives Disclosures

(a) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
2014 2013

$ $

Short-term Employee Benefits 1,599,127          1,850,158          
Long-term Employee Benefits 126,837             37,487               
Post-employment Benefits 137,568             148,872             
Termination Benefits -                     62,088               

1,863,532          2,098,605          

The remuneration paid to the key management personnel is detailed in the Directors' Report.

Note 25:   Employee Benefits

(a) Employee Share Ownership Plan 

(b)  Superannuation Plan

2014 2013
$ $

Defined contribution superannuation expense 504,519             615,165             

Shares issued under the ESOP will rank from the date of issue equally with the other shares in the company then on
issue.

The Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) was approved by the Annual General Meeting and established on 30
November 2009. 

All shares issued pursuant to the ESOP are held by a trustee appointed by the company in trust for the participant until
such time as the loan is repaid. The loan becomes immediately repayable in the event of dismissal, resignation, death or
retirement of the participant. 60% of all dividends and distributions made in respect of the shares must be applied
towards repayment of the loan. Voting rights attached to the shares may only be exercised by the trustee holder in the
best interest of the participant.

For accounting purposes, the share issue under the ESOP has been treated as option grant and the value of the options
vested has been accounted for and included in the result of the period. Any repayment of the loan will be treated as
partial payment to be applied towards the payment of shares issued under the ESOP.

On 16 December 2009, a total of 5,000,000 shares were granted to the employees and directors of the company under
the ESOP.

The company contributes to employee superannuation plans in accordance with contractual and statutory requirements.

The ESOP aims to motivate, retain and attract quality employees and directors of the company to create commonality of
purpose between the employees and directors and the company. The ESOP is operated by way of the company issuing
new shares to participants, with an amount equal to the subscription price for those shares being loaned to the
participant by the company. That loan secured by the company taking security over the shares which are subject to a
holding lock period of ten years, is interest free with recourse only to the shares. The loan is to be repaid over time by the
participant (whether through dividends, specific payments to reduce the loan, or on sale of the underlying shares).  
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 25:   Employee Benefits (continued)

(c) Employee Numbers

2014 2013

Number of full-time equivalent employees 37                  109                

Note 26:   Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The group undertakes transactions in a range of financial instruments including:
 - Cash assets;
 - Trade and other receivables;
 - Trade and other payables; and
 - Investments.

(a) Interest Rate Risk

Total              

 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate
Note $

2014
Financial Assets 
Cash (1) 8 2,452,276 1.57%
Trade and other receivables (1) 9 1,109,681 0.00%
Other assets - Term deposit (1) 11 11,260,920 3.63%

14,822,877

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables (2) 15 4,190,732 0.00%

4,190,732

2013
Financial Assets
Cash (1) 8 2,902,033 1.45%
Trade and other receivables (1) 9 5,971,285 0.00%
Other assets - Term deposit (1) 11 2,049,703 4.13%

10,923,021
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables (2) 15 15,332,036 0.00%
Borrowings (2) 16 3,820,004 7.50%

19,152,040

(1) Loans and receivables category
(2) Financial liabilities at amortised cost category

The main risks arising from the group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

The group’s exposure to interest rate risk is the risk that the financial instrument's value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates. The effective weighted average interest rates on those financial assets is as follows:

The decrease of employee numbers arose from the transfer of employees to Aggregato following the calling card
business disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 26:   Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
                 (continued)

(b) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and net investments in foreign operations. 

2014 2013 2014 2013
Consolidated
US dollars 120,541 1,491,320 349,518 4,709,007
New Zealand dollars 528,255 1,702,668 338,001 1,259,049
Singapore dollars 97,816 297,939 6,573 28,237
Hong Kong dollars -                     9,904 -                        -                        
British pounds -                     -                     8,475 7,720

746,612 3,501,831 702,567 6,004,013

(c) Credit Risk

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the group.

The group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter-party or any group of counter-parties
having similar characteristics. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar, NZ dollar ,SG dollar, HK dollar and UK pound.

The transactional currency exposure will be minimised by seeking economically favourable local suppliers. When it is
required, the group will enter into forward exchange contracts to reduce and minimise its currency exposures.

Foreign currency risk also arises on translation of the net assets of our non Australian controlled entities which have
different functional currency. The foreign currency gains or losses arising from this risk are recorded through the foreign
currency translation reserve. The group does not seek to hedge this exposure taking consideration of current net
investment position.

The carrying amount of the consolidated entity's foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at
the reporting date was as follows:

Assets Liabilities

The group's maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is
the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 26:   Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
                 (continued)

(d) Liquidity Risk

Remaining contractual maturities

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate 1 year or less
Between 1 
and 2 years

Between 2 
and 5 years

Remaining 
contractual 
maturities

$ $ $ $

2014
Non-derivatives

Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables 4,190,732 -                        -                        4,190,732
Total non-derivatives 4,190,732 -                     -                     4,190,732

2013
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables 15,332,036 -                        -                        15,332,036
Interest-bearing
Vendor notes 7.50% 2,432,052 1,595,059      -                     4,027,111
Total non-derivatives 17,764,088 1,595,059      -                     19,359,147

The group's objective is to be self-funding by the generation of positive cash flow. The group manages liquidity risk by
monitoring cash flow requirements on a continuing basis.  

The following tables detail the consolidated entity's remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities.
Both interest and principal cash flows are disclosed as remaining contractual maturities and therefore these totals may
differ from their carrying amount in the statement of financial position.

As at 30 June 2014, the group maintained a total of $13.7 million in cash balance and bank deposits. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 26:   Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
                 (continued)

(e) Summarised Sensitivity Analysis

Interest Rate Risk

+10% -10% +10% -10% +10% -10% +10% -10%
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,109        (6,109)      6,109        (6,109)      6,321        (6,321)      6,321       (6,321)      
Other assets - term deposit 15,187      (15,187)    15,187      (15,187)    4,807        (4,807)      4,807       (4,807)      
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (10,028)    10,028      (10,028)    10,028     (33,930)    33,930      (33,930)    33,930     
Increase/(decrease) 11,268      (11,268)    11,268      (11,268)    (22,802)    22,802      (22,802)    22,802     

Foreign Exchange Risk

+10% -10% +10% -10% +10% -10% +10% -10%
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Increase/(decrease) (2,803)      3,426        (375,330)  458,736   159,230    (194,614)  129,904   (158,771)  
(2,803)      3,426        (375,330)  458,736   159,230    (194,614)  129,904   (158,771)  

(f) Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Profit/Loss Equity

At balance date, the group has no financial instruments which are measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial 

Due to their nature, the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, other current assets
as they relate to financial assets, trade and other payables, income tax payable and borrowings is assumed to
approximate their value. Accordingly no quantitative disclosures have been included.

Year Ended 30 June 2014 Year Ended 30 June 2013

Year Ended 30 June 2014 Year Ended 30 June 2013
Profit/Loss Equity

The following sensitivity analysis is based on interest rate exposures arising from the effect on interest income on net
average balance of cash and cash equivalents and term deposits from 10 per cent movement in interest rates during the
year.

A sensitivity of plus or minus 10 per cent has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the current level of
both short term and long term Australian dollar interest rates. 

The sensitivity analysis is based on foreign currency risk exposures on financial instruments and net foreign investment
balances as at reporting date. Foreign currency risk arising from financial instruments represents a financial risk. 

A sensitivity of 10 per cent has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the current level of exchange rates
and the volatility observed both on an historical basis and market expectations for future movements. 

Profit/Loss Equity Profit/Loss Equity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 27:  Segment Reporting

(a) Types of Products and Services

The consolidated entity operates primarily in the provision of pre-paid telephony products and services.

(b) Accounting Policies and Inter-Segment Transactions

(c) Major Customers

Australia New Zealand Singapore Elimination (1) Total
$ $ $ $ $

2014

Revenue 
Revenue from external customers       45,816,386       7,038,428         591,912                      -     53,446,726 
Other income       23,256,156       4,754,709         399,355                      -     28,410,220 
Inter-segment revenue         1,312,504                      -           61,120      (1,373,624)                      - 
Total segment revenue       70,385,046     11,793,137      1,052,387      (1,373,624)     81,856,946 

Result
Earnings before interest expense and taxation 
(EBIT)         3,167,208       5,185,127         379,910       8,732,245 

Finance costs         (198,245)

Taxation
Income tax expenses       (3,084,849)                      -          (49,889)                      -      (3,134,738)

Profit for the year after income tax       5,399,262 

Other Segment Information
Depreciation            691,933              1,583           20,913                      -          714,429 
Goodwill impairment         6,326,506                      -                     -                      -       6,326,506 

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets 15,730,696 857,075 278,533        (1,020,595)    15,845,709    
 - Deductions to non-current assets (25,483,251)    (6,678)           (89,509)        -                    (25,579,438)  
Segment liabilities 8,034,473       788,794        171,695        (1,398,583)          7,596,378 

The consolidated entity has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports and that are reviewed and used
by the chief operating decision makers in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.

The operating segments are identified by management based on operating business geographical location. On this basis,
management has identified three reportable segments, Australia, New Zealand and Singapore. Discrete financial
information about each of these operating businesses is reported on a monthly basis.

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors as the chief operating decision maker with respect
to operating segments are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent with the consolidated
entity's policies described in Note 1.

The consolidated entity is not reliant on any single customer and no one customer represents more that 10% of the
Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 27:  Segment Reporting (continued)

Australia New Zealand Singapore Elimination (1) Total
$ $ $ $ $

2013

Revenue 
Revenue from external customers       69,039,733     11,193,619         915,419                      -     81,148,771 
Other income         2,361,093            22,315                  44                      -       2,383,452 
Inter-segment revenue         7,639,542                      -           86,900      (7,726,442)                      - 
Total segment revenue       79,040,368     11,215,934      1,002,363      (7,726,442)     83,532,223 

Result
Earnings before interest expense and taxation 
(EBIT)         5,726,051        (380,955)          (16,580)         (499,614)       4,828,902 

Finance costs         (438,288)

Taxation
Income tax (expense)/benefit          (593,999)                      -           45,200                      -         (548,799)

Profit for the year after income tax       3,841,815 

Other Segment Information
Depreciation         1,645,787              2,392           28,025                      -       1,676,204 

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets       49,202,449       2,112,523         461,609      (8,860,011)     42,916,570 
 - Additions/(Deductions) to non-current assets (2,378,152)      2,532            26,017          -                    (2,349,603)    
Segment liabilities       39,649,406       4,653,567         677,249      (8,020,299)     36,959,923 

(1) Inter-segment revenue elimination represents the elimination of telco costs recharged within the Group. The balance
sheet effect of the re-charge of telco costs results in the elimination of intercompany receivables and liabilities in the
Segment assets and Segment liability categories in the segment note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 28:   Parent Entity Disclosures

2014 2013
$ $

Current assets 15,587,481        20,286,456       
Total assets 20,198,259        48,986,289       

Current liabilities 12,715,940        44,145,655       
Total liabilities 12,915,966        44,437,853       

Issued capital 9,221,511          8,998,970         
Reserve -                        475,084            
Retained earnings (1,939,218)        (4,925,618)        
Shareholders' equity 7,282,293          4,548,436         

Profit/(loss) for the year 5,727,681          (1,109,709)        

Total comprehensive income 5,727,681          (1,109,709)        

Fair Value
Carrying 

Value
$ $

Net assets recognised at acquisition date 
Cash 1,982,476          1,982,476         
Fixed Assets 630,169             630,169            
Goodwill 10,409,997        10,409,997       
Other Asset/ Liabilities (8,018,034)        (8,018,034)        
Total 5,004,608          5,004,608         

Gain arising from acquisition (1) -                            

Parent entity contingencies

The details of all contingent liabilities in respect to Tel.Pacific Limited are disclosed in Note 21.

Company

(1) As the transfer of retail business and assets at book value is within the consolidated group, no gain arising from
acquisition.

On 21 May 2013, as part of corporate consolidation the Company entered into an Asset Transfer Deed with gotalk Pty
Limited to acquire all retail business and assets of gotalk Pty Limited for a consideration of $5.00 million, effective from 1
April 2013. 

gotalk Retail Business
and Assets

The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in Note 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 29:   Discontinued Operations

Disposal of Calling Card Business

The results of the calling card and related business for the year have been presented below:

2014 2013
$ $

i) Operating Result

Revenue 40,339,526        65,604,509       
Cost of sales (28,725,239)      (48,184,482)      
Gross profit 11,614,287        17,420,027       
Other income 52,930               17,526              
Operating expenses (3,304,441)        (5,010,663)        
Employee benefits expense (4,368,766)        (7,196,452)        
Earnings before interest expense, taxation, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 3,994,010          5,230,438         
Depreciation and amortisation (434,050)           (1,368,735)        
Earnings before interest expense and taxation (EBIT) 3,559,960          3,861,703         
Finance costs -                        -                        
Profit before income tax 3,559,960          3,861,703         
Income tax expense (953,412)           (1,029,759)        
Profit after income tax expenses from discontinued operations 2,606,548          2,831,944         

Gain on disposal before income tax expense 13,348,502        -                        
Income tax expense (1,887,793)        -                        
Gain on disposal after income tax expense 11,460,709        -                        

Total profit after income tax expense from discontinued operations 14,067,257        2,831,944         

ii) Profit on Sale of Discontinued Operations

Sales proceeds 19,000,000        -                        
Disposal costs (88,365)             -                        
Net assets disposed of (1) (5,563,133)        -                        
Gain on disposal before income tax 13,348,502        -                        
Income tax expense (1,887,793)        -                        
Gain on disposal after income tax 11,460,709        -                        

(1) Net assets disposed of represents the net assets attributable to the discontinued operations as follows:

Property, plant and equipment 798,456             -                        
Inventory 67,248               -                        
Prepayment 6,304                 -                        
Consignment debtor 1,130,013          -                        
Deferred commission (net) 2,583,291          -                        
Leave entitlement (179,504)           -                        
Unearned revenue (13,044,941)      -                        
Goodwill 14,202,266        -                        
Net assets attributable to the discontinued operations 5,563,133          -                        

On 24 March 2014, the Company entered into a Business Sale and Purchase Agreement with Aggregato Gulliver Pty
Limited, to sell certain assets comprising the two stage dialling card operations of the Group. The purchase price for the
sale was $19 million. Aggregato also agreed to assume responsibility for certain liabilities, including unutilised air time of
unused paid calling cards and first used but unpaid calling cards (to a maximum of $5 million). The effective date of the
disposal was 1 April 2014, and the completion date was 28 April 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 29:   Discontinued Operations (continued)

Disposal of Calling Card Business (continued)

2014 2013
$ $

iii) Cash flows from discontinued operations
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (1,437,532)         3,244,635         
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 18,944,275        (245,095)           
Net cash outflow from financing activities -                         (5,832)               
Net cash inflow from discontinued operations 17,506,743        2,993,708         

Note 30:  Prior Period Adjustment

As at As at As at 
30 June 30 June 30 June

2014 2013 2012

Trade and other receivables - as originally stated 1,109,681          10,723,304        10,941,331       
Adjustment -                         (4,752,019)         (4,051,289)        
Trade and other receivables - as restated 1,109,681          5,971,285          6,890,042         

Unearned revenue - as originally stated 1,263,398          20,005,634        20,932,974       
Adjustment -                         (4,752,019)         (4,051,289)        
Unearned revenue - as restated 1,263,398          15,253,615        16,881,685       

An issue was identified in the current period in relation to the recognition of unbilled receivables and corresponding
unearned revenue. An amount of $4,752,019 and $4,051,289 was recorded as unbilled receivables at 30 June 2013 and
30 June 2012 respectively, within trade and other receivables, with the corresponding balance included in unearned
revenue. Following reassessment by management it has been concluded that the unbilled receivables and unearned
revenue do not qualify as assets or liabilities of the Group in accordance with the conceptual framework. Accordingly
these amounts have been adjusted as disclosed in the table below. 

This has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the 30 June 2013 and 30 June
2012 period ends.

The impact of the correction of this error has a nil effect on the net assets or reported profit and other comprehensive
income of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 31:   Events Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

Note 32:   Company Details

The company is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.  

The registered office and principal place of business of the company is:
Level 10, Tower B, 821 Pacific Highway, Chatswood NSW 2067,  Australia

No matter or circumstance, other than those referred to in the financial statements or notes thereto, has arisen since the
end of the financial year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the consolidated
entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future financial years.
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Directors' Declaration

1.

(a)
(b)

2.

3.

4.

   Greg McCann Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang
   Chairman Managing Director 

Sydney, 29 August 2014

In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer required 
by section 295A.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf
of the directors by:

The directors of the Company declare that:

The financial statements, comprising the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows, accompanying notes, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001
and: 

comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date.

The Company has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit and unreserved statement of
compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
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BDO East Coast Partnership ABN 83 236 985 726 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd 
ABN 77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO East Coast Partnership and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved 
under Professional Standards Legislation (other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees) in each State or Territory other than Tasmania.  

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO member firms. 

67 

Tel: 61 2 9251 4100 
Fax: 61 2 9240 9821 
www.bdo.com.au 

 

Level 11, 1 Margaret St 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Australia 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

 

To the members of Tel.Pacific Limited 

 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Tel.Pacific Limited, which comprises 

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company 

and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.  

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that 

gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the 

Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 

enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in 

accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that 

the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.  

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards 

require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report 

is free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the company’s preparation of the financial report that gives a 

true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 

directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion.  
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Independence 

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the 

Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the 

Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of Tel.Pacific Limited, would be 

in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report. 

Opinion  

In our opinion:  

(a) the financial report of Tel.Pacific Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 

2001, including:  

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 

June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and  

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 

2001; and  

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as 

disclosed in Note 1.  

 

Report on the Remuneration Report 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included on pages 10 to 14 of the directors’ report 

for the year ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the 

preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of 

the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration 

Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  

Opinion  

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Tel.Pacific Limited for the year ended 30 June 

2014 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  

BDO East Coast Partnership 

 

Paul Bull 

Partner 

 

Sydney, 29 August 2014 
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Shareholder Information

(a) Shares and Options as at 26 August 2014

Equity Security Number

Shares on issue 10,721,241         

(b) Distribution of Equity Securities as at 31 July 2014

Range
Ordinary Shares 

Holders
Ordinary Shares 

Units

1 - 1,000 244                      228,763              
1,001 - 5,000 84                        212,451              
5,001 - 10,000 28                        201,347              
10,001 - 100,000 40                        1,258,088           
100,001 and over 11                        8,820,592           
Total 407                      10,721,241         

There were 19 holders of less than a marketable parcel of 5,553 ordinary shares.

(c)  Substantial Shareholders as at 26 August 2014

Rank Shareholder
Number of 

Shares
% of Issued 

Capital

1 Mr Chiao Heng Huang 4,053,958 37.81
2 Tel.Pacific ESOP Pty Limited 1,156,717 10.79
3 Mr Bob Cheng 758,091 7.07
4 Mr Barry Christopher Chan 584,711 5.45
5 Focus Capital Finance Limited 544,500 5.08
6 Megaway Group Limited 544,500 5.08

Shareholder information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Limited and not shown elsewhere in this report
is as follows.

Class of Equity Securities
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Shareholder Information

(d) Twenty Largest Shareholders as at 26 August 2014

Rank Shareholder
Number of 

Shares
% of Issued 

Capital

1 Mr Chiao Heng Huang 4,053,958 37.81
2 Tel.Pacific ESOP Pty Limited 1,156,717 10.79
3 Mr Bob Cheng 758,091 7.07
4 Mr Barry Christopher Chan 584,711 5.45
5 Focus Capital Finance Limited 544,500 5.08
6 Megaway Group Limited 544,500 5.08
7 Fortune Giant International Limited 424,924 3.96
8 Ms Wei Chun Wu 287,049 2.68
9 177,500 1.66

10 161,530 1.51
11 137,112 1.28
12 Mr Trevor Neil Hay 99,304 0.93
13 Ruminator Pty Ltd 94,478 0.88
14 Mr Jeffrey Wu Kin Ma 82,003 0.76
15 Nunc Coepi Pty Ltd 66,432 0.62
16 The Edge Fund Pty Ltd 64,600 0.60
17 Fogarty Foundation Pty Ltd 61,000 0.57
18 Mr Andrew William Blackman 53,000 0.49
19 Mr Ilario Faenza 53,000 0.49
20 Mrs Samantha Vieira 51,494 0.48

Total 9,455,903 88.19

Walker Group of Companies Retirement Fund
Contemplator Pty Ltd (ARG Pension Fund A/C)
Global Property Services Pty Limited (Super Account)
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Corporate Directory

Directors Auditor
Greg McCann BDO East Coast Partnership
Chiao-Heng (Charles) Huang Level 11, 1 Margaret Street
Barry Chan Sydney NSW 2000
Jeffrey Ma
Stephe Wilks

Solicitor
Addisons Lawyers
Level 12, 60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Company Secretary
Jeffrey Ma Truman Hoyle Lawyers
Nick Geddes, Australian Company Secretary Pty Limited Level 11, 68 Pitt Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Registered Office
Level 10, Tower B, 821 Pacific Highway Banker
Chatswood NSW 2067 Westpac Banking Corporation
Australia 425 Victoria Avenue
Telephone (02) 8448 0633 Chatswood NSW 2067
Facsimile 1300 369 222
Web Site www.telpacific.com.au Commonwealth Bank

48 Martin Place 
Sydney NSW 2000

Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 3, 60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Stock Exchange Listing
Australian Securities Exchange Limited
ASX Code: TPC
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